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FINANCIAL DATA 

The summary information presented below at or for each of the years presented is derived in part 
f rom the consolidated financial statements of Westfield Financial. The following information is only a 
summary, and you should read it in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes 
beginning on page 23. 

At December 31, 
2003 2002 2001 2000 I999 

(In thousands) 
Selected Financial Condltlon Data: 
Total assets $ 795,216 $ 812,980 $ 782,732 
Loans, net(1) 344,980 357,155 413,546 
Securities available for sale 25,806 79,842 74,184 
Securities held to maturity 69,927 45.960 45,614 
Mortgage backed securities available 

for sale 76,177 90,468 87,150 
Mortgage backed securities held to maturity 191.683 159,339 81,007 
DeDOSitS 632.431 656.065 637,109 
Customer repurchase agreements 12;135 81724 6,061 
Foderal Home Loan Bank advances 20.000 15,000 
Total stockholders' equity 124,804 126,699 131,317 
Allowance for loan losses 4,642 4,325 3,923 
Nonperforming loans 1,768 2,383 2,684 

5 694,791 $ 638,563 
464,531 467.444 

75.709 53.164 
39,461 44.239 

52,580 23,568 

601,896 551,024 
6,806 4,507 

7,686 3,274 
5.000 

77,755 71,245 
3,434 3,118 
2.308 2,751 

For the Years Ended 
December 31, 

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 
(In thousands, except per share data) 

Selected Ooeratina Data: 
Interest arrddividend income $ 35,635 $43,013 $47,543 $46,718 $41,850 
Interest expensc 13,858 10.775 25.002 24,535 21,151 
Not interest and dividend illcome 21,777 24,238 22.541 22.103 20,699 
Provision lor loan losses - .- 750 934 1.630 - I . ,Oa ~ 843 

Net interest and dividend incomo after 
provision for loan losses 21.027 23,304 20,911 21.094 19.856 

Total noninterest expense 17.6311 16,659 15.899 14,684 12,986 
Income before income taxes 6,471 6,283 7.529 9,265 8,425 
Income taxes -2,8?fl. 2.239 2.512 3 8 3  2,898 
Net income $ 3,651 .- S . O l . 7  $ 6.080 

Basic earnings per share 5 0.36 $ 0.39 NIA NIA N/A 
Diluted earnings por share $ 0.36 $ 0.38 NIA N/A NIA 

Dividends per share paid $ 0.20 $ 0.15 N/A N/A N/A 

(1) Loans are shown net of deferred loan fees. allowance for loan losses and unadvanced loan funds. 

Total noninterest incotne 3,074 (362) 2,517 2,855 1,555 



At or for the Years Ended December 31, 
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 

Selected Financial Ratios and 
Other Data( 1 ) 
Performance Ratios: 

Return on average assets ..... 
Return on average equity ............................... 
Average equity to average assets .................. 
Equity to total assets at end of period ............ 
Average interest rate spread .......................... 
Net interest margin(2) ............ 
Average interest earning asse 

Total noninterest expense to 
interest earning liabilities.. ...................... 

average assets ........................................... 

Regulatory tier 1 leverage capital .................. 
Tier 1 risk-based capital ......... 
Total risk-based capital .................................. 

Nonpetforming loans as a percent of 
total loans ................................................... 

Nonperforming assets as a percent of 
total assets ................................................. 

Allowance for loan losses as a percent of 
total loans ........................... 

Allowance for loan losses as a 

............. 

Asset Quality Ratios: 

nonperforming assets ........ 
Number of: 

Banking offices ............................................... 
Full-time equivalent employees 

0.45% 
2.94 

15.33 
15.69 
2.47 
2.86 

121.49 

2.18 
74.59 

15.31 
28.46 
29.63 

0.51 

0.22 

1.33 

263 

10 
152 

0.51% 0.70% 
3.14 6.16 

16.23 11.32 
15.58 16.78 
2.54 2.75 
3.18 3.33 

125.76 115.77 

2.10 2.21 
65.01 65.62 

15.65 17.27 
28.77 28.09 
29.78 28.98 

0.66 0.64 

0.29 0.37 

1.20 0.94 

181 137 

10 10 
146 159 

0.92% 
8.04 

11.45 
11.19 
2.91 
3.51 

1 15.40 

2.22 
62.48 

11.51 
16.33 
17.24 

0.49 

0.33 

0.73 

149 

8 
151 

0.91% 
7.95 

11.50 
11.16 
2.98 
3.55 

115.82 

2.15 
59.74 

11.11 
16.28 
17.32 

0.58 

0.43 

0.66 

113 

8 
150 

(1) 
(2) 
(3) 

Asset Quality Ratios and Regulatory Capital Ratios are end of period ratios. 
Net interest margin represents net interest and dividend income as a percentage of average interest earning assets. 
The efficiency ratio represents the ratio of operating expenses divided by the sum of net interest and dividend income and 
noninterest income less gains (losses) on sales and writedowns of securities. 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 

Overview 

Westfield Financial strives to remain a leader in meeting the financial service needs of the local 
community and to provide quality service to the individuals and businesses in the market areas that it has 
served since 1853. Historically, Westfield Bank has been a community-oriented provider of traditional 
banking products and services to business organizations and individuals, including products such as 
residential and commercial real estate loans, consumer loans and a variety of deposit products. 
Westfield Bank meets the needs of its local community through a community-based and service-oriented 
approach to banking. 

In recent years, in addition to real estate lending, we have adopted a growth-oriented strategy that 
has focused on increased emphasis on commercial lending. Our strategy also calls for increasing deposit 
relationships and broadening our product lines and services. We believe that this business strategy is 
best for our long term success and viability, and complements our existing commitment to high quality 
customer service. In connection with our overall growth strategy, Westfield Bank seeks to: 
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continue to grow its commercial loan portfolio as a means to increase the yield on and diversify its 
loan portfolio and build transactional deposit account relationships; 

0 focus on expanding its retail banking franchise, and increasing the number of households served 
within its market area; and 

depending on market conditions, refer substantially all of the fixed-rate residential real estate loans 
to a third party mortgage company which underwrites, originates and services these loans in order 
to diversify its loan portfolio, increase fee income and reduce interest rate risk. 

You should read our financial results for the year ended December 31, 2003 in the context of this 
strategy. 

Net income decreased $393,000, or 7.5%, to $3.7 million or $0.36 per diluted share for the year 
ended December 31, 2003 from $4.0 million or $0.38 per diluted share for 2002 due to a $2.5 
million decrease in net interest income and a $581,000 increase in income tax expense, offset by 
an increase in noninterest income of $3.4 million. 

0 Westfield Financial entered into an agreement with the Massachusetts Department of Revenue to 
settle the issue related to taxes owed on dividends received from Westfield Bank’s RElT 
subsidiary in 2002 and prior tax years. Under the agreement, Westfield Financial paid 50% of the 
amount owed including interest. This resulted in a charge of approximately $1 “45 million for state 
taxes, interest and penalties, net of federal benefit. 

0 Residential loans decreased $47.3 million from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003 
primarily as a result of the residential real estate loan program with a third party mortgage 
company. Westfield Bank refers its residential real estate borrowers to a third party mortgage 
company and substantially all of Westfield Bank’s residential real estate loans are underwritten, 
originated and serviced by a third party mortgage company. Westfield Bank receives a fee of 65 
basis points from each of these loans originated. Westfield Bank believes that this program has 
diversified its loan portfolio and continues to reduce interest rate risk. The decrease in residential 
real estate loans combined with the lower interest rate environment contributed to a $7.4 million 
decrease in interest income for the year 2003 as compared to 2002. However, reduced interest 
expense of $4.9 million and $340,000 in noninterest fee income from the third party mortgage 
company partially offset the decrease. 

Indirect automobile loans decreased $17.8 million, or 52.7% from December 31, 2002 to 
December 31, 2003. Management curtailed its indirect automobile lending beginning in fiscal year 
2000 due to credit quality concerns, and in the fourth quarter of 2003, Westfield Bank ceased 
writing indirect automobile loans. Although indirect auto loans had higher yields, they also had 
higher costs, therefore Westfield Bank expects minimal impact on earnings as a result of the 
discontinuation of the program. 

0 Commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans increased $54.2 million from 
December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. This is consistent with Westfield Bank’s strategic 
plan, which emphasizes commercial lending. The continued success of Westfield Bank’s 
commercial lending is primarily dependent on the local and national economy. 



4 Net interest and dividend income decreased primarily as a result of a change in the mix of interest- 
earning assets and the declining interest rate environment. The loan portfolio decreased $1 2.2 
million, or 3.4% from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003 while the investment portfolio 
increased $12.0 million, or 3.2% from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. Westfield 
Bank’s loans typically have higher yields than investments. Westfield Financial expects net 
interest and dividend income to increase in future periods as it continues to emphasize higher 
yielding commercial real estate loans and commercial and industrial loans, while referring 
residential mortgage loans to a third party mortgage company. In addition, Westfield Bank 
continues to emphasize core deposits over time deposits. 

Westfield Bank purchased $16.5 million in Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOLI”) as a means to 
offset employee benefit costs such as health care and retirement plan costs. Income earned on 
BOLl is shown as noninterest income. As a result, the purchase of BOLl during 2003 had a 
negative effect on Westfield Bank’s interest margin. This is because the funds invested in BOLl 
would have been otherwise invested in loans or investments, which would have had a positive 
effect on interest income. 

0 Core deposits increased while time deposits decreased. This is consistent with Westfield Bank’s 
strategy for growing core deposits in order to maintain long-term relationships with customers and 
to reduce the cost of funds. Management believes however, that a percentage of the growth in 
core deposits is due to the low rate environment, i.e. no incentive for customers to lock up funds in 
time deposits. In a period of rising interest rates, the more rate sensitive customers may shift 
funds back into time deposits, resulting in a higher cost of deposits. 

0 Asset quality improved; nonperforming loans as a percent of total loans decreased. Charge-offs 
also decreased, particularly as a result of the curtailment of indirect auto loans and the improved 
local and national economy. 

The allowance for loans as a percent of total loans receivable increased. Westfield Bank has 
steadily increased this ratio over the last five years to compensate for growth in commercial loans, 
which typically have higher risks than residential loans. As Westfield Bank emphasizes the 
origination of commercial real estate loans and commercial and industrial loans for its loan 
portfolio, increased allowance requirements may continue. Due to Westfield Bank’s third party 
mortgage company program and the curtailment of its indirect automobile lending, the balance of 
residential real estate loans and consumer loans is expected to decrease. Decreased allowances 
for residential real estate loans and consumer loans in the future may result. 

General 

Westfield Financial’s consolidated results of operations are comprised of earnings on investments 
and the net income recorded by its principal operating subsidiary, Westfield Bank. Westfield Bank’s 
consolidated results of operations depend primarily on net interest and dividend income. Net interest and 
dividend income is the difference between the interest income earned on interest-earning assets and the 
interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Interest-earning assets consist primarily of residential 
mortgage loans, commercial mortgage loans, commercial loans, consumer loans, mortgage-backed 
securities and investment securities. Interest-bearing liabilities consist primarily of certificates of deposit, 
savings and money market and NOW account deposits, and borrowings from the Federal Home Loan 
Bank of Boston. The consolidated results of operations also depend on provision for loan losses, 
noninterest income, and noninterest expense. Noninterest expense includes salaries and employee 
benefits, occupancy expenses and other general and administrative expenses. Noninterest income 
includes gains (losses) on sales of securities and securities writedowns and service fees and charges. 

6 



The consolidated results of operations may also be affected significantly by economic and 
competitive conditions in the market area and elsewhere, including those conditions that influence market 
interest rates, government policies and the actions of regulatory authorities. Future changes in applicable 
laws, regulations or government policies may materially affect the results of operations. Furthermore, 
because Westfield Bank’s lending activity is concentrated in loans secured by residential and commercial 
real estate located in Hampden County, Massachusetts, downturns in this regional economy could have a 
negative impact on its earnings. 
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AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET AND ANALYSIS OF NET INTEREST AND DfVlDEND INCOME 

The following tables set forth information relating to our financial condition and net interest and dividend income for the years ended December 37, 2003, 2002 and 2001 and 
reflect the average yield on assets and average cost of liabilities forthe periods indicated. The yields and costs were derived by dividing inmme or expense by the average balance of 
interest-earning assets or interest-bearing liabilities, respectively, for the periods shown. Average balances were derived from actual daily balances over the periods indicated. 
Interest income includes fees earned from making changes in loan rates or terms, and fees earned when commercial real estate loans were prepaid or refinanced. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
2003 2002 snoi 

ASSETS: 
Interestearning assets: 
Short term investments(1) ...................... 
Securities ..__. . .. . . . . . . . . .._. . . . . .. . . . . . . __. .. . . . __. , . ._ 
Loans(2) ..................................,..,..,.,....,. 

Total interest-earning assets ._._. __. , . . 
Total noninterest-earning assets ..... 

Total assets _____...._____...._.__....____.......,. 

LlABlLlTlES AND EQUITY: 
Interest-bearing liabilities: 
NOW accounts ....................................... 
Savings accounts 
Money market deposit accounts _ _ _ . _ _ . _ _ _ _ .  
Time certificates of deposit _______.__._.__. . . .  
Tota I in te re st-be aring deposits . . . , . . . . . . . . . , . 
Customer repurchase agreements and 
other borrowings _ . _ _ .  . .. . . . . . , . , . __. _. . , . . , . . . . , . __. 
Interest-bearing liabilities . . . _. . , . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . , 

Noninterest-beari ng deposits. 
Other noninterest-bearing liab 

Total noninterest-bearing liabilities . 

Total liabilities ._._.....__._._..__.___...,.......,. 
Total equity .__.__.._.__._..____.__.__.___..____._ 
Total liabilities and equity ___...__.___..__ 

Net interest and dividend income _.. .__.___ 
Net interest rate spread(3) ..................... 
Net interest margin(4) .....__._ 
Ratio of average interest-earning 
assets to average interest-bearing 
liabilities __. , . __. __. . . . . , . __. , . . . , . _. . , . . , . __. ._. , . . , . .. . , 

~~ 

Average Average Average 
Average Yield/ Average Yield1 Average Yield/ 
Balance Interest cost Balance Interest cost Balance Interest cost 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$ 17,648 
389,333 
354,134 
761,115 
48.693 

$809.808 

S 42,783 
46,771 

152,863 
353.967 
596,384 

30.123 
626.507 

54,119 
5.020 

59.139 

685,646 
124,162 

$809.808 

3.14% 170 0.96% $ 27,162 $ 416 1.53% $ 17,893 $ 562 $ 
13,189 3.39 337,646 14,562 4.31 212,340 13,190 6.21 
22.276 6.29 398.555 28.035 7.03 445.987 33,791 7.58 
35.635 4.68 763,363 43.023 5.63 676,220 47.543 7.03 

28,971 43.394 

$792.334 $ 719.514 

1.45% $ 35,738 $ 770 589 
37.l 0.79 44,026 474 1.08 43,965 523 

0.81% $ 40,636 $ $ 347 

1,860 1.22 133,622 2,541 190 123.085 3,670 
10.544 2.98 380.385 14,957 3.93 374.100 19,767 
13.122 598.669 18,561 576,888 24,730 

736 2.44 8.332 214 2.57 7,199 272 
13.858 2.21 607.001 18,775 3.09 584.087 25.002 

48,856 
7,883 

56.739 

38,737 
15.324 
54,062 

638,148 663,740 
128,594 82 -466 

$ 797334 m 
$ 2  1.777 $ 24738 $22.541 

2.47% 2.54% 
2.86 3.18 

2.15% 
1.19 
2.98 
5.28 

3.78 
4.28 

2.75% 
3.33 

11 5 . 8 ~  

( 1 )  

(3 
(3) 
(4) 

Short term investments include Federal Funds Sold 
Loans. including non-accmal loans, are net of deferred loan origination costs (fecsj. and unadvanced funds. 

Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on interest-earning asscts and the weighted average cost of interest-bearing liabilities. 
Net interest margin represents net interest and dividend income as a percentage of awrage interest earning assets. 



RateNolume Analysis. The following table shows how changes in interest rates and changes in the 
volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected our interest and 
dividend income and interest expense during the periods indicated. Information is provided in each 
category with respect to: 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) the net change. 

interest income changes attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied 
by prior rate); 
interest income changes attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by 
prior volume); and 

The changes attributable to the combined impact of volume and rate have been allocated 
proportionately to the changes due to volume and the changes due to rate. 

Year Ended December 31,2003 
Compared to Year Ended 

Year Ended December 31,2002 
Compared to Year Ended 

December 31,2002 December 31,2001 
Increaself Decrease) lncreaself Decrease) 
Due to Due to 

Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net 

(In thousands) 
Interest earning assets: 

Short term investments .......... $ (146) $ (100) $ (246) $ 291 $ (437) $ (146) 
Investment securities .............. 2,229 (3,602) (1,373) 7,784 (6,412) 1,372 
Loans ..................................... (5.759) (3.125) (2,634) (3.594) (2,162) (5.756) 
Total interest-earning assets .. (6.336) (1,042) (7,378) 4.481 (9.01 1) (4.530) 

Interest bearing liabilities: 
NOW accounts ................... $ 31 $ (273) $ (242) $ 106 $ (287) $ (181) 
Savings accounts ................ 30 (133) (103) 1 (50) (49) 

accounts.. ...................... 366 (1,047) (681) 314 (1,443) (1,129) 
Time certificates of deposit .... (1,039) (3,374) (4,413) 332 (5,142) (4,810) 

agreements and other 
borrowings .......................... 560 (38) 522 43 (101) (58) 

Money market deposit 

Customer repurchase 

Total interest bearing 
liabilities .............................. (52) (4,865) (4,917) 796 (7,023) (6.227) 

Change in net interest and 
dividend income ................. (99gJ $ 3 - w  8 3,685 $. (1.988) $_lm 
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Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31,2003 and December 31,2002 

Consolidated assets decreased $17.8 million, or 2.2%, to $795.2 million at December 31, 2003 
from $813.0 million at December 31, 2002. Securities decreased $12.0 million, or 3.2%, to $363.6 million 
at December 31,2003 from $375.6 million at December 31,2002. Cash and cash equivalents decreased 
$10.9 million to $45.7 million at December 31, 2003 from $56.6 million at December 31, 2002. 

Net loans during this period decreased by $12.2 million, or 3.4%, to $345.0 million at December 
31, 2003, from $357.2 million at December 31, 2002. Decreases in residential and indirect automobile 
loans were partially offset by increases in commercial real estate loans and commercial and industrial 
loans. 

Residential loans decreased $47.4 million to $1 10.5 million at December 31, 2003 from $157.9 
million at December 31, 2002. The decrease is primarily the result of the current residential real estate 
loan program with a third party mortgage company. Under this program which commenced on 
September 1, 2001, Westfield Bank refers its residential real estate borrowers to a third party mortgage 
company and substantially all of the Bank’s residential real estate loans are underwritten, originated and 
serviced by a third party mortgage company. The Bank receives a fee of 65 basis points for each of 
these loans originated. The Bank believes that this program will diversify its loan portfolio and reduce 
interest risk. The Bank may purchase residential real estate loans from the third party mortgage company 
depending on market conditions. To date, the Bank has not purchased a significant amount of loans from 
the third party mortgage company. 

Indirect automobile loans decreased $17.8 million, or 52.7% to $16.0 million on December 31, 
2003 as compared to $33.8 million on December 31, 2002. Management curtailed its indirect lending 
beginning in fiscal year 2000 and in the fourth quarter of 2003, the Bank ceased writing loans under this 
program. 

Commercial real estate loans increased $30.4 million or 30.1% to $131.3 million at December 31, 
2003 from $100.9 million at December 31, 2002. Commercial and industrial loans increased $23.8 million 
or 38.7% to $85.3 million at December 31, 2003 from $61.5 million at December 31, 2002. The Bank’s 
strategic plan calls for emphasis on commercial lending. The success of the plan to grow commercial 
loans is primarily dependent upon the improvement of the local and national economy. 

During the twelve month period ended December 31, 2003, the Bank invested $16.5 million in 
bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”). The Bank purchased BOLI as a means to offset employee benefit 
costs. A substantial number of employees are covered by BOLI policies. 

Total deposits decreased $23.7 million, or 3.6%, to $632.4 million at December 31, 2003 from 
$656.1 million at December 31, 2002. Non-interest bearing accounts decreased $1 16,000 to $54.6 
million at December 31, 2003 from $54.7 million at December 31, 2002. This decrease was primarily the 
result of a $2.7 million decrease in internal checking accounts to $3.4 million at December 31, 2003. The 
amount reported in internal checking accounts represents checks outstanding that were issued by the 
Bank for accounts payable purposes, loan proceeds, and official checks and money orders purchased by 
Bank customers. The decrease in internal checking was partially offset by an increase in customer 
demand deposits of $2.6 million, or 5.3%, to $51.2 million at December 31, 2003 from $48.6 million at 
December 31,2002. 

NOW, regular savings, and money market accounts increased $17.3 million, or 7.6%, to $243.6 
million at December 31, 2003 from $226.3 million at December 31, 2002. Time deposits decreased by 
$40.8 million, or 10.9% to $334.2 million at December 31, 2003 from $375.0 million at December 31, 
2002. The Bank’s strategic plan calls for a lesser reliance on time deposits accounts. This was facilitated 
by the low interest rate environment of 2003, which gave little incentive for customers to lock up funds in 
time deposits. 



Customer repurchase agreements increased $3.4 million or 39.1% to $12.1 million at December 
31, 2003 from $8.7 million at December 31, 2002. A customer repurchase agreement is an agreement by 
Westfield Bank to sell to and repurchase from the customer an interest in specific securities issued by or 
guaranteed by the United States Government. This transaction settles immediately on a same day basis 
in immediately available funds. Interest paid is commensurate with other products of equal interest and 
credit risk. Substantially all the customer repurchase agreements are held by the Bank’s commercial loan 
customers. Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) borrowings increased $5.0 million from $1 5.0 million at 
December 31, 2002 to $20.0 million at December 31, 2003 to take advantage of the low interest rate 
environment. 

Stockholders’ equity at December 31,2003 and December 31,2002 was $124.8 million and 
$126.7 million, respectively. The change is comprised of net income of $3.7 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, a decrease in net unrealized gains on securities available for sale of $430,000, net 
of income taxes, the net repurchase of 57,700 shares of common stock for $1 .I million, the purchase of 
shares of common stock for the management recognition and retention plan for $2.3 million and the 
declaration by the Board of Directors of quarterly $0.05 per share cash dividends aggregating $2.1 
million. 

Comparison of Operating Results for Years Ended December 31,2003 and 2002 

General 

The Company reported net income of $3.7 million or $0.36 per diluted share for the year ended 
December 31, 2003 compared to net income of $4.0 million or $0.38 per diluted share for the same 
period in 2002. Interest and dividend income decreased by $7.4 million and interest expense decreased 
by $4.9 million resulting in a decrease in net interest income of $2.5 million. This was offset by an 
increase in noninterest income of $3.4 million. 

The Company entered into an agreement with the Massachusetts Department of Revenue to 
settle the issue related to taxes owed on dividends received from the Bank’s RElT subsidiary in 2002 and 
prior tax years. Under the agreement, the Company paid 50% of the amount including interest that would 
have been owed under legislation that was enacted in March 2003. The payment is a deductible expense 
for federal tax purposes. This resulted in a charge of approximately $1.45 million for state taxes, interest, 
and penalties, net of federal tax benefit. Total income taxes were $2.8 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2003 as compared to $2.2 million for the same period in 2002. 

Interest and Dividend Income 

Total interest and dividend income decreased $7.4 million or 17.2% to $35.6 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2003 compared to $43.0 million for the same period in 2002. Interest and dividends 
on securities decreased $1.2 million to $12.4 million, while interest income on loans decreased $5.8 
million to $22.3 million. 

The decrease in interest and dividend incorne on securities was the result of a decrease of 92 
basis points in the average yield on securities from 4.31 % for the year 2002 to 3.39% for the same period 
in 2003. This change was partially offset by a $51.7 million increase in the average balance of securities 
from $337.6 million for 2002 to $389.3 million for 2003. Market interest rates have declined significantly 
since January 1, 2001. For example, the prime rate of interest decreased 550 basis points from January 
of 2001 through December 31, 2003. As higher yielding investments purchased in a higher rate 
environment have matured, been called, or paid down in 2003, the funds were reinvested at lower rates. 
In addition, the interest rate on adjustable rate securities repriced downward in the declining interest rate 
environment. 
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The decrease in interest income on loans was primarily the result of a $4.3 million decrease in 
interest on residential real estate loans. The average balance of residential real estate loans decreased 
from $186.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 to $1 31.4 million for the year ended December 
31, 2003 due to our residential real estate loan program with a third party mortgage company. However, 
Westfield Bank earned $340,000 in fee income on the origination of these loans which is included in non- 
interest income in 2003. In addition, as a result of the low interest rate environment of 2003, the Bank 
experienced high levels of payoffs of existing mortgages due to refinancing activity. Moreover, interest on 
consumer loans decreased $1.7 million. This was primarily the result of a decrease in average balance of 
consumer loans from $49.6 million for 2002 to $31.2 million for 2003 due to management's decision to 
curtail indirect automobile loan originations. 

Interest income from commercial real estate loans and commercial and .industrial loans increased 
$167,000 for the year ended December 31,2003 from the year ended December 31,2002. In 
accordance with Westfield Bank's strategic plan, the average balance of commercial real estate loans 
and commercial industrial loans increased $28.8 million to $1 91.5 million for the year ended December 
31,2003 as compared to $162.7 million for the same period in 2002. This change was offset by a 
decrease in the average yield on these loans due to the significant decline in market interest rates since 
December 31, 2000. Loans originated in the current low interest rate environment have typically been at 
lower rates than in previous years. In addition, some adjustable rate loans repriced downward. This 
resulted in a lower yield for the commercial real estate loan and commercial and industrial loan portfolios. 

Interest Expense 

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 decreased $4.9 million to $13.9 million 
from the comparable 2002 period. This was attributable to a decrease in the average cost of interest- 
bearing liabilities of 88 basis points to 2.21 9'0 for the year ended December 31, 2003 from 3.09% for the 
same period in 2002. This decrease was partially offset by an increase of $19.5 million in the average 
balance of total interest-bearing liabilities. The decrease in average cost of interest-bearing liabilities was 
the result of the declining rate environment discussed previously and Westfield Bank's emphasis on core 
deposits over time deposits. 

Net Interest and Dividend Income 

Net interest and dividend income for the year ended December 31, 2003 decreased $2.5 million, 
or 10.3%, to $21.8 million in 2003 from $24.2 million in 2002. The net interest rate spread, the difference 
between the average yield on average interest earning assets and the average cost of average total 
interest bearing liabilities, decreased 7 basis points to 2.47% for 2003 from 2.54% for 2002. The net 
interest margin, which is net interest and dividend income divided by average total interest earning 
assets, decreased 32 basis points to 2.86% for 2003 from 3.18% for the comparable prior year period. 
As discussed above, the decreases in net interest and dividend income due to lower interest rates were 
partially offset by the increase in the balance of interest-earning assets. 

Provision for Loan Losses 

During 2003, Westfield Bank provided $750,000 for loans losses, compared to $934,000 for 
2002. The provision for loan losses brings Westfield Bank's allowance for loan losses to a level 
determined appropriate by management. The following factors resulted in a decrease in the provision for 
2003 as compared to 2002. 
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Loan concentrations - Commercial real estate loans and commercial and industrial loans 
increased $54.2 million or 33.4%. Westfield Bank considers these types of loans to 
contain more risk than conventional residential mortgages. These increases resulted in 
an increase in the allowance requirements for commercial real estate and commercial 
and industrial loans. As Westfield Bank emphasizes increasing its commercial real 
estate loans and commercial and industrial loans, increased allowance requirements may 
continue. 

These increases were offset by a decrease in residential real estate loans of $47.4 million 
to $1 10.5 million and a decrease in consumer loans of $18.8 million to $22.3 million, 
resulting in decreases in the allowance requirements for residential real estate loans and 
consumer loans, respectively. Due to Westfield Bank’s residential real estate loan 
program with a third party mortgage company and the discontinuation of its indirect auto 
lending, the balance of residential mortgages and consumer loans is expected to 
continue to decrease. Decreased future allowances for these loans may result. 

Credit qualify - Actual loss experience on loans decreased with charge-offs totaling 
$725,000 in 2003 as compared to $928,000 in 2002. Net loans charged off as a percent 
of average loans outstanding decreased from 0.13% in 2002 to 0.12% in 2003. Non- 
accrual loans decreased $615,000 from $2.4 million at December 31, 2002 to $1.8 million 
at December 31, 2003. 

As a result of the detailed allowance for loan loss methodology and consideration of the above 
factors, the provision for loan losses decreased by $1 84,000 in 2003 as compared to 2002. 

The allowance for loan losses at the end of 2003 was 1.33% of total loans compared with 
I .20% at the end of 2002. The increase in the coverage ratio reflects the changes in the loan portfolio 
described above. 

Noninterest Income 

Noninterest income increased $3.4 million to $3.1 million in 2003 from ($362,000) for 2002. 
Included in noninterest income in the year 2002 were writedowns of certain equity securities of $2.5 
million. Income on bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) was $806,000 for the year ended December 31, 
2003, compared to none for the same period in 2002. In addition, fees received from our residential real 
estate loan program with a third party mortgage company were $340,000 for the year ended December 
31, 2003 compared with $1 96,000 for the same period in 2002. It is anticipated that these fees will 
decrease as refinancing of residential loans decreases, particularly if interest rates increase in future 
periods. 

Noninterest Expense 

Noninterest expense for the year ended December 31,2003 was $17.6 million compared to $16.7 
million for the same period in 2002. Employee salary and benefits for the year ended December 31,2003 
were $9.7 million compared to $8.9 million in 2002. The increase was the result of normal salary 
increases, along with an increase in employee benefit expense of $688,000 for the year ended December 
31, 2003, primarily as a result of increased expenses for the management recognition and retention plan 
and supplemental employee retirement plan. 

Income Taxes 

Income taxes increased $581,000, or 26.0%, to $2.8 million in 2003. The effective tax rate was 
43.6% in 2003 compared to 35.6% for 2002. The effective tax rate also reflects the utilization of Westfield 
Securities Corporation and Elm Street Securities Corporation, both qualified securities corporations, and 
Elm Street Real Estate Investments, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Westfield Bank, as a real estate 
investment trust. 
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Massachusetts legislation was signed on March 5, 2003 amending the corporate tax law affecting 
the treatment of dividends received from Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs). Dividends from the 
REIT subsidiary are no longer eligible for a dividends-received deduction. As a result of the enactment of 
this legislation, the Company has ceased recording the tax benefits associated with the dividend received 
deduction effective for the 2003 tax year. 

In addition to the effect on 2003, the legislation is retroactive to 1999. The Company’s 2003 
results included a charge of $1.45 million representing the additional state tax liability, including interest, 
relating to the deduction for dividends received from the REIT for 2002 and prior years. 

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31,2002 and December 31,2001 

Consolidated assets increased $30.3 million, or 3.9%. to $813.0 million at December 31, 2002 
from $782.7 million at December 31, 2001. Securities increased $87.6 million, or 30.4%, to $375.6 million 
at December 31, 2002 from $288.0 million at December 31, 2001. Federal Funds sold increased $2.9 
million to $37.2 million at December 31, 2002 from $34.3 million at December 31, 2001 primarily because 
of the decrease in net loans. Net loans during this period decreased by $56.3 million, or 13.6%, to $357.2 
million at December 31, 2002, from $41 3.5 million at December 31, 2001. Residential loans decreased 
$54.9 million from $212.8 million at December 31, 2001 to $157.9 million at December 31, 2002. The 
decrease is primarily the result of the current residential loan referral program with a third party mortgage 
company. Under this program which commenced on September 1, 2001, Westfield Bank refers its 
residential real estate borrowers to a third party mortgage company and substantially all of the Bank’s 
residential real estate loans are underwritten, originated and serviced by a third party mortgage company. 
The Bank receives a fee of 65 basis points for each of these loans originated. The Bank believes that this 
program will diversify its loan portfolio and reduce interest risk. In 2001, Westfield Bank securitized $35.7 
million in thirty-year fixed rate residential mortgage loans and $24.6 million in fifteen year fixed rate 
residential mortgage loans with Fannie Mae. This transaction was done to reduce interest rate risk as well 
as improve liquidity and enhance the subsequent saleability of the resulting securities. Because 
Westfield Bank retained all beneficial interests in the resulting mortgage backed securities, the 
securitization did not result in a material change in total assets. Commercial and industrial loans 
increased $14.5 million, or 30.8 %, for the year ended December 31, 2002. 

Asset growth was funded by an increase in deposits of $19.0 million or 3.0% to $656.1 
million at December 31, 2002 from $637.1 million at December 31, 2001. Demand deposits, NOW and 
money market accounts increased $9.6 million and $12.5 million respectively, while regular accounts 
increased $2.2 million to $44.9 million at December 31, 2002. Time deposits decreased $5.3 million to 
$375.0 million at December 31, 2002 from $380.3 million at December 31, 2001. 

Customer repurchase agreements increased $2.6 million or 42.6% to $8.7 million at December 
31.2002 from $6.1 million at December 31, 2001. A customer repurchase agreement is an agreement by 
Westfield Bank to sell to and repurchase from the customer an interest in specific securities issued by or 
guaranteed by the United States Government. This transaction settles immediately on a same day basis 
in immediately available funds. Interest paid is commensurate with other products of equal interest and 
credit risk. Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings increased $15.0 million from zero at December 31, 
2001 to $15.0 million at December 31, 2002 to take advantage of the low interest rate environment. 

Stockholders’ equity at December 31,2002 and December 31,2001 was $126.7 million and 
$131.3 million, respectively, representing 15.6% and 16.8% of total assets. The change is comprised of 
net income of $4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, a decrease in net unrealized gains on 
securities available for sale of $562,000, net of income taxes, the recording of the purchase of 380,150 
shares of stock for the employee stock ownership plan amounting to $5.6 million and shares for the 
management recognition and retention plan amounting to $2.7 million and the declaration by the Board of 
Directors of three $0.05 per share cash dividends on March 26, June 28, and September 24, 2002 
amounting to $1.6 million. 
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Comparison of Operating Results for the Year Ended December 31,2002 and December 31,2001. 

General 

Net income was $4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, a decrease of $1 .O million, 
or 20%, compared with net income of $5.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease 
was primarily attributable to net losses from sales and writedowns of certain equity securities of $1.8 
million for 2002 compared with net gains of $830,000 for the year ended December 31,2001. 
Writedowns of certain equity securities in 2002 resulted from impairment that was determined to be other 
than temporary of $2.1 million. The provision for loan losses decreased $696,000 from $1.6 million in 
2001 to $934,000 for 2002. Noninterest expense increased $760,000 while federal and state income 
taxes decreased $273,000 and net interest and dividend income increased $1.7 million compared with 
the prior year. 

Interest and Dividend Income 

Total interest and dividend income decreased $4.5 million or 9.5% to $43.0 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2002 compared with $47.5 million for the same period in 2001. Interest and 
dividends on securities increased $1.4 million to $13.6 million from $12.2 million as Westfield Financial, 
Inc. invested principal paydowns on its residential real estate portfolio in investment securities. Interest 
income on loans decreased $5.8 million due to the decline of loans held in portfolio over the prior period. 
The average balance of interest earning assets increased $87.1 million, or 12.9%. However, the yield on 
earning assets decreased from 7.03% in 2001 to 5.63% for 2002 due to the low interest rate environment. 

Interest Expense 

Interest expense decreased $6.2 million, or 24.8%, to $18.8 million for 2002 compared to $25.0 
million for 2001. The average balance of total interest-bearing deposits increased $21.8 million in 2002 to 
$598.7 million, while the average cost of deposits decreased 1 1  9 basis points to 3.09% due to the low 
interest rate environment. The average balance of customer repurchase agreements and other 
borrowings increased $1 .I million from $7.2 million in 2001 to $8.3 million in 2002. 

Net Interest and Dividend Income 

Net interest and dividend income for 2002 was $24.2 million as compared with $22.5 million for 
2001. Net interest rate spread decreased to 2.54% for 2002 from 2.75% for the prior year. Net interest 
margin decreased to 3.18% for 2002 compared with 3.33% for 2001. The decrease in interest rate 
spread and net interest margin was primarily the result of the yield on earning assets falling more than the 
cost of interest-bearing liabilities. 

Provision for Loan Losses 

During 2002, Westfield Bank provided $934,000 for loans losses, compared to $1.6 million for 
2001. The provision for loan losses brings Westfield Bank's allowance for loan losses to a level 
determined appropriate by management. The following factors resulted in an increase in the provision for 
2002 as compared to 2001. 
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Loan concentrations - Commercial real estate loans and commercial and industrial loans 
increased $16.0 million or 10.9%. Westfield Bank considers these types of loans to 
contain more risk than conventional residential mortgages which remained relatively 
constant as a percentage of the loan portfolio. These increases resulted in an increase in 
the allowance requirements for commercial real estate and commercial and industrial 
loans. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in consumer loans from $58.0 
million at December 31, 2001 to $41.1 million at December 31, 2002, resulting in a 
decrease in the allowance requirement for consumer loans. 

Credit quality - Actual loss experience on loans decreased significantly with charge-offs 
totaling $928,000 in 2002 as compared to $1.8 million in 2001. Net loans charged off as 
a percent of average loans outstanding decreased from 0.26% in 2001 to 0.13% in 2002. 
Non-accrual loans decreased $300,000 from $2.7 million at December 31, 2001 to $2.4 
million at December 31, 2002. 

As a result of the detailed allowance for loan loss methodology and consideration of the above 
factors, management determined that an decrease in the provision of $696,000 was appropriate. 

The allowance for loan losses at the end of 2002 was 1.20% of total loans compared with 
0.94% at the end of 2001. The increase in the coverage ratio reflects the changes in the loan portfolio 
described above. 

Noninterest Income 

Noninterest income decreased $2.9 million to ($362,000) in 2002 from $2.5 million for 2001. 
Included in noninterest income in the year 2002 were writedown of certain equity securities of $2.5 
million. Included in noninterest income in the year 2001 were life insurance proceeds of $300,000. Fees 
received from our current residential loan referral program with a third party mortgage company were 
$1 96,000 for the year ended December 31,2002 compared with $17,000 for the same period in 2001. 

Noninterest Expense 

Noninterest expense for the year ended December 31,2002 was $16.7 million compared to $15.9 
million for the same period in 2001. Employee salary and benefits for the year ended December 31,2002 
was $8.9 million compared to $8.4 million in 2001. For the year ended December 31, 2002, stock based 
benefit plans expense amounted to $302,000. Because Westfield Financial, Inc. converted to stock form 
on December 27,2001, no stock based benefit plans expense was recognized in 2001. 

Income Taxes 

Income taxes decreased $273,000, or 10.9%, to $2.2 million in 2002. The effective tax rate was 
35.6% in 2002 compared to 33.4% for 2001, The effective tax rate also reflects the utilization of Westfield 
Securities Corporation, a qualified securities corporation, and Elm Street Real Estate Investments, Inc., a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of Westfield Bank, as a real estate investment trust. 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 

The term “liquidity” refers to our ability to generate adequate amounts of cash to fund loan 
originations, loan purchases, deposit withdrawals and operating expenses. Our primary sources of 
liquidity are deposits, scheduled amortization and prepayments of loan principal and mortgage-backed 
securities, maturities and calls of investment securities and funds provided by our operations. Westfield 
Bank also can borrow funds from the Federal Home Loan Bank based on eligible collateral of loans and 
securities. Outstanding borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank at December 31, 2003 and 2002 
were $20.0 million and $15.0 million, respectively. At December 31, 2003, Westfield Bank’s maximum 
borrowing capacity from the Federal Home Loan Bank was approximately $38.9 million, net of any 
outstanding borrowings. In addition, we may enter into reverse repurchase agreements with approved 
broker-dealers. Reverse repurchase agreements are agreements that allow us to borrow money using 
our securities as collateral. 

The Bank also has outstanding, at any time, a significant number of commitments to extend credit 
and provide financial guarantees to third parties. These arrangements are subject to strict credit control 
assessments. Guarantees specify limits to the Bank’s obligations. Because many commitments and 
almost all guarantees expire without being funded in whole or in part, the contract amounts are not 
estimates of future cash flows. The Bank is also obligated under agreements with the FHLB to repay 
borrowed funds and is obligated under leases for certain of its branches and equipment. A summary of 
lease obligations, borrowings, and credit commitments at December 31. 2003 follows: 

Lease Obligations 

Borrowings 

Operating lease obligations 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Credit Commitments 
Available lines of credit 
Other loan commitments 
Letters of Credits 

Total 

Within 
1 Year 

u 
~- $ -  - 

$ 43,427 
27,014 

6,052 

$49 

After I Year After 3 Years 
but Within but Within After 
3 Years 5 Years 5 Years Total 

(In thousands) 

$ 374 $ 155 $ - 

$ 12,685 
98 I 
749 

$ $ 

$ 716 

l u U 2 Q  

$ 56,112 
27,995 

6,801 

$ 11 1,624 

Maturing investment securities are a relatively predictable source of funds. However, deposit 
flows, calls of securities and prepayments of loans and mortgage-backed securities are strongly 
influenced by interest rates, general and local economic conditions and competition in the marketplace. 
These factors reduce the predictability of the timing of these sources of funds. 
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Our primary investing activities are the origination of commercial real estate, commercial and 
industrial and consumer loans, and the purchase of mortgage-backed and other investment securities. 
During the year ended December 31, 2003, Westfield Bank originated loans of approximately $148.8 
million, and during the comparable period of 2002, Westfield Bank originated loans of approximately 
$99.6 million. Under the Bank’s residential real estate loan program which commenced on September 1, 
2001, Westfield Bank refers its residential real estate borrowers to a third party mortgage company and 
substantially all of the Bank’s residential real estate loans are underwritten, originated and serviced by a 
third party mortgage company. Purchases of securities totaled $252.9 million for the year ended 
December 31,2003 and $270.0 million for the year ended December 31,2002. At December 31,2003, 
Westfield Bank had loan commitments to borrowers of approximately $34.8 million, and available home 
equity and unadvanced lines of credit of approximately $56.1 million. 

Deposit flows are affected by the level of interest rates, by the interest rates and products offered 
by competitors and by other factors. Total deposits decreased $23.7 million during the year ended 
December 31,2003 and increased $18.9 million during the year ended December 31,2002. Time 
deposit accounts scheduled to mature within one year were $234.7 million at December 31, 2003. Based 
on Westfield Bank’s deposit retention experience and current pricing strategy, it anticipates that a 
significant portion of these certificates of deposit will remain on deposit. We monitor our liquidity position 
frequently and anticipate that we will have sufficient funds to meet our current funding commitments. 

At December 31, 2003, we exceeded each of the applicable regulatory capital requirements. Our 
tier 1 leverage capital was $124.0 million, or 15.31 % to average assets. Our tier 1 capital to risk weighted 
assets was $124.0 million or 28.46%. We had total capital to risk weighted assets of $129.1 or 29.63%. 

We do not anticipate any material capital expenditures during calendar year 2004, nor do we 
have any balloon or other payments due on any long-term obligations or any off-balance sheet items 
other than the commitments and unused lines of credit noted above. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably 
likely to have a current or future effect on the Company’s financial condition, changes in financial 
condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources 
that is material to investors. 

Management of Market Risk 

As a financial institution, our primary market risk is interest rate risk since substantially all 
transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars with no direct foreign exchange or changes in commodity 
price exposure. ‘Fluctuations in interest rates will affect both our level of income and expense on a large 
portion of our assets and liabilities. Fluctuations in interest rates will also affect the market value of all 
interest earning assets. 

The primary goal of our interest rate management strategy is to limit fluctuations in net interest 
income as interest rates vary up or down and control variations in the market value of assets, liabilities 
and net worth as interest rates vary. We seek to coordinate asset and liability decisions so that, under 
changing interest rate scenarios, net interest income will remain within an acceptable range. 

To achieve the objectives of managing interest rate risk, Westfield Bank’s Asset and Liability 
Management Committee meets monthly to discuss and monitor the market interest rate environment 
relative to interest rates that are offered on its products. The Asset and Liability Management Committee 
presents periodic reports to the Board of Directors of Westfield Bank and Westfield Financial, Inc. at their 
regular meetings. 
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Historically, Westfield Bank’s lending activities have emphasized residential real estate and 
commercial real estate loans. However, since 1996, Westfield Bank has increased its emphasis on 
commercial and consumer lending and deposit relationships. Commercial and industrial loans have 
grown $67.0 million or 367.4%, since December 31, 1996, Commercial and industrial loans have also 
grown 38.3% since December 31, 2001. Consumer loans decreased $35.8 million, or 61.6%, since 
December 31, 2001. The indirect automobile loan portfolio grew substantially in 1999 as a result of 
aggressive pricing and the addition of several new automobile dealers. Management curtailed its indirect 
lending beginning in fiscal year 2000 and in the fourth quarter of 2003 the program was discontinued. We 
believe that Westfield Bank’s increased emphasis on commercial lending will allow it to diversify its loan 
portfolio while continuing to meet the needs of the businesses and individuals that it serves. 

Westfield Bank’s primary source of funds has been deposits, consisting primarily of time deposits, 
money market accounts, savings accounts, demand accounts and NOW accounts, which have shorter 
terms to maturity than the loan portfolio. Several strategies have been employed to manage the interest 
rate risk inherent in the assetlliability mix, including but not limited to: 

maintaining the diversity of our existing loan portfolio through the origination of 
commercial loans and commercial real estate loans which typically have variable rates 
and shorter terms than residential mortgages; and 

emphasizing investments with expected short-term maturities of five years or less 

In addition, emphasis on commercial loans has reduced the average maturity of Westfield Bank’s 
loan portfolio. Moreover, the actual amount of time before loans are repaid can be significantly affected 
by changes in market interest rates. Prepayment rates will also vary due to a number of other factors, 
including the regional economy in the area where the loans were originated, seasonal factors, 
demographic variables and the assumability of the loans. However, the major factors affecting 
prepayment rates are prevailing interest rates, related financing opportunities and competition. We 
monitor interest rate sensitivity so that we can adjust our asset and liability mix in a timely manner and 
minimize the negative effects of changing rates. 

Each of the Westfield Bank’s sources of liquidity is vulnerable to various uncertainties beyond the 
control of the Westfield Bank. Scheduled loan and security payments are a relatively stable source of 
funds, while loan and security prepayments and calls, and deposit flows vary widely in reaction to market 
conditions, primarily prevailing interest rates. Asset sales are influenced by pledging activities, general 
market interest rates and unforeseen market conditions. The Westfield Bank’s financial condition is 
affected by its ability to borrow at attractive rates, retain deposits at market rates and other market 
conditions. Management considers the Westfield Bank’s sources of liquidity to be adequate to meet 
expected funding needs and also to be responsive to changing interest rate markets. 

Net Merest and Dividend lncome Simulation. We use a simulation model to monitor interest rate 
risk, This model reports the net interest income at risk primarily under seven different interest rate 
environments. Specifically, net interest income is measured in one scenario that assumes no change in 
interest rates, and six scenarios where interest rates increase and decrease, 100, 200 and 300 basis 
points, respectively, from current rates over the one year time period following the current consolidated 
financial statement. 

The changes in interest income and interest expense due to changes in interest rates reflect the 
rate sensitivity of our interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities. For example, in a rising 
interest rate environment, the interest income from an adjustable rate loan is likely to increase depending 
on its repricing characteristics while the interest income from a fixed rate loan would not increase until the 
funds were repaid and loaned out at a higher interest rate. 
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The tables below set forth as of December 31, 2004 the estimated changes in net interest and 
dividend income that would result from incremental changes in interest rates over the applicable twelve- 
month period. 

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 
2004 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Net Interest 

Changes in and 
Interest Rates Dividend 
(Basis Points) Income % Change 

300 $25,349 0.4% 

200 25,164 (0.3) 
100 25,598 1.4 

0 25,243 NIA 
-1 00 25,456 0.8 
-200 25,654 1.6 
-300 24,636 (2.4) 

Market rates were assumed to increase and decrease 100 basis points, 200 basis points, and 
300 basis points in even increments over the twelve month period. The repricing and/or new rates of 
assets and liabilities moved in tandem with market rates. However, in certain deposit products, the use of 
data from a historical analysis indicated that the rates on these products would move only a fraction of the 
rate change amount. 

As interest rates declined during 2001 through 2003, Westfield Bank experienced an increase in 
core deposits and a decrease in term deposits. Banks nationwide have reported this trend as well. With 
term deposit rates at such low levels, there is little incentive for bank customers to lock up funds in term 
deposits. Management believes that in a rising rate environment, Westfield Bank will experience a shift, 
by some customers, out of core deposits and back into term deposits. Based upon analysis, 
Management has estimated what is believed to be the rate sensitive portion of the funds currently in core 
deposits. In scenarios that assume a rising rate environment of 200 basis points or more, this shift is 
incorporated into the balance sheet forecasts. 

Westfield Bank developed consolidated balance sheet growth projections for the twelve month 
period. The same product mix and growth strategy was used for all rate change simulations, except for 
the shift into term deposits in certain scenarios as described in the previous paragraph. Income from tax- 
exempt assets is calculated on a fully taxable equivalent basis. 

Pertinent data from each loan account, deposit account and investment security was used to 
calculate future cash flows. The data included such items as maturity date, payment amount, next 
repricing date, repricing frequency, repricing index and spread. Prepayment speed assumptions were 
based upon the difference between the account rate and the current market rate. 

Another circumstance that affects the results is that market rates as of December 31, 2003 are 
near historical lows. In the three declining rate scenarios, Westfield Bank forecasted that its rates on 
some deposit products would not fall as sharply as market rates. For example, because the rate on 
regular savings accounts is 0.50%, it is not possible for the rate to decrease by 100 basis points or more. 



FORWARD - LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Annual Report to Shareholders contains “forward-looking statements” which may be 
identified by the use of such words as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “should,” “planned,” “estimated,” 
and “potential.” Examples of forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, estimates with 
respect to our financial condition and results of operation and business that are subject to various factors 
which could cause actual results to differ materially from these estimates. These factors include, but are 
not limited to: 

general and local economic conditions; 

changes in interest rates, deposit flows, demand for mortgages and other loans, real estate 
values, and competition; 

changes in accounting principles, policies, or guidelines; 

changes in legislation or regulation; and 

other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory, and technological factors affecting our 
operations, pricing, products, and services. 

Any or all of our forward-looking statements in this Annual Report to Shareholders and in any 
other public statements we make may turn out to be wrong. They can be affected by inaccurate 
assumptions we might make or known or unknown risks and uncertainties. Consequently, no forward- 
looking statements can be guaranteed. We disclaim any obligation to subsequently revise any forward- 
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements, or to reflect the 
occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events. 
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Deloitte gi 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Westfield Financial, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Westfield Financial, Inc. and 
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 3 1,2003 and 2002 and the related consolidated 
statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years 
in the period ended December 3 1,2003. These consolidated financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Westfield Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 3 1,2003 and 
2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 3 1,2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

March 1,2004 
Hartford, Connecticut 
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WESTFIELD FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Amounts) 

ASSETS 
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS 

FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD 

INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

SECURITIES: 
Available for Sale - at estimated fair value 

Held To Maturity - at amortized cost (estimated fair value of 
$71,003 in 2003 and $46,582 in 2002) 

MORTGAGE BACKED SECURITIES: 
Available for Sale - at estimated fair value 

Held to Maturity - at amortized cost (estimated fair value of 
$1 9131 1 in 2003 and $161,497 in 2002) 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK OF BOSTON AND OTHER STOCK 

LOANS - Net of allowance for loan losses of $4,642 in 2003 
and $4,325 in 2002 

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT - Net 

ACCRUED INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS 

BANK OWNED LIFE INSURANCE 

OTHERASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
LIABILITIES: 
DEPOSITS: 

Noninterest-bearing 
Interest-bearing 
Total deposits 

CUSTOMER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK OF BOSTON ADVANCES 

OTHER LI AB1 LIT1 ES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY: 
Preferred stock - $.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, 

Common stock - $.Ol par value, 25,000,000 shares authorized, 
none outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002 

10,580,000 shares issued, 10,522,300 and 10,154,150 shares 
outstanding at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively 

Additional paid-in capital 
Unallocated Common Stock of Employee Stock Ownership Plan 
Restricted stock unearned compensation 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 
Treasury stock, at cost (57,700 shares at December 31, 2003 

and none at December 31,2002) 
Total stockholders’ equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

2003 

$ 11,740 

15,930 

18.004 

45,674 

25,806 

69,927 

76,177 

191,683 

4,237 

344,980 

11,774 

3,555 

16,507 

4,896 
$795.216 

$ 54,620 
577,81 I 
632.431 

12,135 

20,000 

5,846 

670.412 

106 
47,143 
(5,837) 
(2 7 094) 

85,794 
788 

(1,096) 

$795.216 
124,804 

December 31, 
2002 

$ 11,975 

37,233 

7,367 

56.575 

79,842 

45,960 

90,468 

159,339 

3,933 

357,155 

12,851 

3,937 

2,920 
$812.980 

$ 54,736 
601,329 
656.065 

8,724 

15,000 

6.492 

686.281 

106 
49,463 
(5,621) 
(2,731 1 

84,264 
1,218 

126.699 
$812.989 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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WESTFIELD FINANCIAL, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts) 

Years Ended December 31, 

INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME: 
Residential and commercial real estate loans 
Securities and mortgage backed securities 
Consumer loans 
Commercial and industrial loans 
Federal funds sold 
Marketable equity securities 
In terest-bearing deposits 

Total interest and dividend income 

INTEREST EXPENSE: 
Deposits 
Customer repurchase agreements 
Other borrowings 

Total interest expense 

Net interest and dividend income 

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 

Net interest and dividend income after 
provision for loan losses 

NONINTEREST INCOME: 
Income from bank owned life insurance 
Service charges and fees 
Gains (losses) on sales and writedowns of securities, net 

Total noninterest income 

NONINTEREST EXPENSE: 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Occupancy 
Computer operations 
Stationery, supplies and postage 
Other 

Total noninterest expense 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 

INCOME TAXES 

NET INCOME 

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE: 
Basic 
Diluted 

- 2003 

$ 15,834 
12,359 
2,440 
4,002 

170 
526 
304 

35.635 

13,122 
21 1 
525 

13,858 

21,777 

750 

21,027 

806 
1,859 

409 

3,074 

9,685 
1,802 
1,667 

560 
3,916 

17,630 

6,471 

2,820 

- $ s 5 1  --_ 

$ 0.36 
$ 0.36 

- 2002 

$ 20,166 
13,591 
4,113 
3,756 

41 6 
603 
368 

43,013 

18,561 
21 3 

1 

18,775 

24,238 

934 

23,304 

1,388 
(1,750) 

(362) 

8,906 
1,799 
1,534 

51 1 
3,909 

16,659 

6,283 

2,239 

$4.044 

0.39 
0.38 

- 2001 

$I 24,737 
12,184 
5,577 
3,477 

562 
40 1 
605 

47,543 

24,730 
246 
26 

25,002 

22,541 

1,630 

20.91 1 

1,687 
830 

2,517 

8,416 
1,788 
1,487 

574 
3,634 

15,899 

7,529 

2,512 

LW 

NIA 
NIA 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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BALANCE, JANUARY 1,2001 

Comprehensive income: 
Net income 
Unrealized gains on securities arising during 

Reclassification for gains included in net income, 
the year, net of tax of $681 

net of taxes of $273 
Comprehensive income 
Net proceeds from sale of common stock 
Capital Distribution to the parent Company 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2001 

Comprehensive income: 
Net income 
Unrealized losses on securities arising during 

Reclassification for gains included in net income, 
the year, net of tax of $91 1 

net of taxes of $623 
fG 
id1 

Comprehensive income 
Activity related to common stock issued as 

employee incentives 
Costs associated with stock conversion 
Cash dividends declared 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2002 

Comprehensive income: 
Net income 
Unrealized losses on securities arising during 

Reclassification for gains included 
the year, net of tax benefit of $92 

in net income, net of taxes of $146 
Comprehensive income 
Activity related to common stock issued 

Treasury stock purchased 
Reissuance of treasury shares in connection 

Cash dividends declared 

as employee incentives 

with stock option exercises 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2003 

See notes to consolidated financial statements 

WESTFIELD FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

(Dollars in Thousands) 
Accumulated 

Additional Other 
Common Paid-In Unallocated Unearned Retained Comprehensive 

Stock Capital ESOP Compensation Earnings income 

$ - $  - $  - $  - $ 76,791 $ 964 

5.017 

1,360 

106 47.723 

(544) 

(1 00) 

106 47,623 81,808 1,780 

4,044 

(1,689) 

1,127 

3,651 

(167) 

637 

Treasury Stock 
Shares Amount Total 

- $ - 3  77,755 

5.017 

1.360 

1544) 
5.833 

47,829 
(100) ~- 

- 131,317 

4.044 

(1 -689) 

1.127 
3.482 

3.651 

(263) 
3,221 



WESTFIELD FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

(Dollars in Thousands) 
Years Ended December 31, 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided 

by operating activities: 
Provision for loan losses 
Valuation adjustment of other real estate owned 
Other than temporary write-down of securities 
Depreciation of premises and equipment 
Net amortization of premiums and discounts of securities, mortgage 

Backed securities and mortgage loans 
Amortization of deferred compensation 
Gain on sale of other real estate owned 
Gain on sale of fixed assets 
Gain on sales of securities - net 
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision 

Accrued interest and dividends 
Other assets 
Other liabilities 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Securities, held to maturity: 

Purchases 
Proceeds from maturities and principles collections 

Purchases 
Proceeds from sales 
Proceeds from calls, maturities and principal collections 

Purchases 
Principal collections 

Purchases 
Proceeds from sales 
Principal collections 

Securities, available for sale: 

Mortgage backed securities, held to maturity, 

Mortgage backed securities, available for sale: 

Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston and other stock 
Net increase (decrease) in loans 
Proceeds from sale or other real estate owned 
Net purchases of premise and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Purchase of bank owned life insurance 

Net cash used in investing activities 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
(Decrease) increase in deposits 
Increase (decrease) in customer repurchase agreements 
Activity related to common stock in connection with employee benefit plan 
Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston advances, net 
Net proceeds received from stock offering 
Capital Distribution to the Parent Company 
Cash dividends paid 
Treasury stock purchased 
Reissuance of treasury shares in connection with stock option exercises 
Stock issuance costs 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 

Beginning of year 
End of year 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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2003 

$ 3,651 

750 

85 
1,080 

3,273 
769 

(50) 
(494) 
(992) 

382 
(708) 
(646) 

7,100 

(61,941) 
37,980 

(1 9,883) 
34,595 
40,610 

(127,681) 
93,000 

(43,383) 
8,104 

47,l l  I 

11,359 
(304) 

(452) 
499 

(16,507) 

3,107 

(23,634) 
3,411 

(2,668) 
5,000 

(2,113) 
(1,134) 

30 

(21.108) 

(I 0,901 ) 

&Ai%f?B 
56,575 

2002 

$ 4,044 

934 
(77) 

2,105 
1,052 

1,601 
302 
(62) 

(355) 
(2,843) 

264 
905 

(428) 

7,442 

(42,389) 
42,053 

(37,445) 
4,222 

23,598 

(1 29,145) 
49,839 

(60,975) 
20,214 
38,236 

55,484 
30 1 

(299) 

(322) 

(36,628) 

18,956 
2,663 
(6,301) 
15,000 

( I  ,588) 

(4) 

(460) 

$375 

28.726 

57.035 

2001 

$ 5,017 

1,630 
30 

31 5 
1,100 

34 1 

(15) 

(1,145) 

(29) 
(308) 

2,857 

(1 -044) 

8,749 

(28,099) 
22,043 

(29,421 ) 
6,478 

24,466 

(89,761) 
15,135 

(50,736) 
52,807 
24,747 

(10,366) 
(188) 

(2,937) 
72 

(65,760) 

35,213 
(1,625) 

47,829 
(1 00) 

81,317 

24,306 

32,729 
&LzX!Js 



WESTFIELD FINANCIAL, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003,2002, AND 2001 

1. REORGANIZATION AND STOCK OFFERING 

On December 27, 2001, the Board of Directors of Westfield Mutual Holding Company (“Mutual 
Holding Company”) completed a plan of reorganization (the “Plan”) whereby the Mutual Holding 
Company formed a mid-tier stock holding company (“Westfield Financial, Inc.” or the “Company”) 
and exchanged 100% of the common stock of Westfield Bank (the “Bank”) for a majority interest in 
Westfield Financial, Inc. Pursuant to the Plan, shares of Westfield Financial, Inc. were offered for 
subscription by depositors with eligible accounts at the Bank as of specified dates. The Company 
issued 10,580,000 shares of Common Stock (par value $0.01 per share) at a price of $10.00 per 
share, of which 47% of these shares, or 4,972,600 shares, were sold to the public, including 
depositors of the Bank and 53% of these shares, or 5,607,400 shares, were issued to the Mutual 
Holding Company. Net proceeds from the stock offering totaled $47.7 million. Costs related to the 
reorganization were charged against the proceeds from the shares sold in the reorganization. 
Reorganization costs of approximately $2.3 million were incurred. 

In connection with the reorganization, a “Liquidation Account” was established in an amount equal to 
the net worth of the Mutual Holding Company set forth in its latest consolidated statement of 
financial condition contained in the reorganization prospectus. The function of the Liquidation 
Account is to establish a priority on liquidation to the assets of the Company to Eligible Account 
Holders (as defined in the Plan) who continue to maintain deposits in the Bank after the 
reorganization. In the unlikely event of a complete liquidation of the Company, and only in such 
event, each Eligible Account Holder would receive from the Liquidation Account a liquidation 
distribution based on the their proportionate share of the then remaining qualifying deposits. 

Current regulations allow the Bank to pay dividends on its stock if its regulatory capital would not 
thereby be reduced below the amount then required for the aforementioned Liquidation Account. 
Also, capital distribution regulations limit the Bank’s ability to make capital distributions which include 
dividends, stock redemptions and repurchases and other transactions charged to the capital 
accounts based on their capital level and supervisory condition. Federal regulations also limit any 
repurchase of the stock for the Bank or its holding company for three years after reorganization 
except for repurchases pursuant to an open-market stock repurchase program with certain 
regulatory criteria and approval of the FDIC. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Operafions and Basis of Presentation - Westfield Financial, Inc. is a Massachusetts 
security corporation. The Company has a state chartered stock savings bank subsidiary called 
Westfield Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank’s deposits are insured to the limits specified by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) and the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF”), a corporation 
formed by the Massachusetts’ legislature. The Bank operates 10 branches in Western 
Massachusetts. The Bank’s primary source of revenue is earned from loans to small and middle- 
market businesses and to residential property homeowners. 

On September 23,2003 the Company adopted an amended plan of charter conversion pursuant to 
which the Bank, and Westfield Mutual Holding Company (the “MHC”) will convert to federal charters. 

In 1998, the Bank formed a subsidiary, Elm Street Real Estate Investments, Inc. (the “REIT”). The 
RElT was 99.9% owned by the Bank. In December 2003, the Bank dissolved the RElT to streamline 
the overall bank structure. Westfield Securities Corp., a Massachusetts chartered security 
corporation, was formed in 2001 by the Company for the primary purpose of holding qualified 
investment securities. In 2003, ‘the Bank formed another wholly owned subsidiary, Elm Street 
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Securities Corporation, a Massachusetts chartered security corporation for the primary purpose of 
holding quality investment securities. 

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the 
Company, the Bank, Westfield Securities Corp., Elm Street Securities Corporation, and the RElT 
prior to its dissolution. All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. 

Estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the 
reported amounts of income and expenses for each. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. Estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to 
the determination of the allowance for loan losses, other than temporary impairment of investment 
securities and accrued liabilities for pension and other post retirement benefits. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Company defines cash on hand, cash due from banks, federal 
funds sold and interest bearing deposits having an original maturity of 90 days or less as cash and 
cash equivalents. Cash and due from banks at December 31, 2003 and 2002 includes partially 
restricted cash of approximately $1 54,000, and $220,000 respectively, for Federal Reserve Bank of 
Boston cash reserve requirements. 

Securities and Mortgage Backed Securities - Securities, including mortgage backed securities, 
which management has the positive intent and ability to hold until maturity are classified as held to 
maturity and are carried at amortized cost. Securities, including mortgage backed securities, which 
have been identified as assets for which there is not a positive intent to hold to maturity are classified 
as available for sale and are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, net of income 
taxes, reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. The Company does not acquire 
securities and mortgage backed securities for purposes of engaging in trading activities. 

Realized gains and losses on sales of securities and mortgage backed securities are computed 
using the specific identification method and are included in noninterest income. The amortization of 
premiums and accretion of discounts is determined by using the level yield method to the earlier of 
the call or maturity date. 

Other than Temporary impairment of Securities - On a quarterly basis, the Company reviews 
available for sale investment securities with unrealized depreciation on a judgmental basis to assess 
whether the decline in fair value is temporary or other than temporary. The Company judges 
whether the decline in value is from company-specific events, industry developments, general 
economic conditions or other reasons. Once the estimated reasons for the decline are identified, 
further judgements are required as to whether those conditions are likely to reverse and, if so, 
whether that reversal is likely to result in a recovery of the fair value of the investment in the near 
term. Unrealized losses which are not expected to reverse in the near term are charged to gains 
(losses) on sales and writedowns of securities in the consolidated statements of income. 

Loans - Loans are recorded at the principal amount outstanding. Interest on loans is calculated 
using the effective yield method on daily balances of the principal amount outstanding and is 
credited to income on the accrual basis to the extent it is deemed collectible. The Company’s 
general policy is to discontinue the accrual of interest when principal or interest payments are 
delinquent 90 days or more, or earlier if the loan is considered impaired. Any unpaid amounts 
previously accrued on these loans are reversed from income. Subsequent cash receipts are applied 
to the outstanding principal balance or to interest income if, in the judgement of management, 
collection of the principal balance is not in question. Loans are returned to accrual status when they 
become current as to both principal and interest and when subsequent performance reduces the 
concern as to the collectibility of principal and interest. Loan fees and certain direct loan origination 
costs are deferred, and the net fee or cost is recognized as an adjustment to interest income over 
the estimated average lives of the related loans. Compensation to an auto dealer is normally based 
upon a spread that a dealer adds on the loan base rate set by the Company. The compensation is 
paid to an automobile dealer shortly after the loan is originated. The Company records the amount 
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as a deferred cost that is amortized over the life of the loans in relation to the interest paid by the 
customer. 

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses is established through provisions for 
loan losses charged to expense. Loans are charged off against the allowance when management 
believes that the collectibility of the principal is unlikely. Recoveries of amounts previously charged- 
off are credited to the allowance. 

The Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio 
based on ongoing quarterly assessments of the estimated losses. The Bank’s methodology for 
assessing the appropriateness of the allowance consists of two key components, which are a 
specific allowance for identified problem loans and a formula allowance for the remainder of the 
portfolio. The specific allowance incorporates the results of measuring impaired loans as provided in 
SFAS No. 1 14, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” and SFAS No. 11 8, “Accounting 
by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and Disclosures.” These accounting 
standards prescribe the measurement methods, income recognition and disclosures related to 
impaired loans. The formula allowance is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by 
type, excluding loans for which a specific allowance has been determined. In determining the loss 
factors to apply to each loan category, the Company considers historical losses, peer group 
comparisons, industry data and loss percentages used by banking regulators for similarly graded 
loans. Loss factors may be adjusted for qualitative factors that, in management’s judgment, affect 
the collectibility of the portfolio as of the evaluation date. 

A loan is recognized as impaired when it is probable that principal and/or interest are not collectible 
in accordance with the loan’s contractual terms. A loan is not deemed to be impaired if there is a 
short delay in receipt of payment or if, during a longer period of delay, the Company expects to 
collect all amounts due including interest accrued at the contractual rate during the period of delay. 
Measurement of impairment can be based on present value of expected future cash flows 
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of 
the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it 
requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant change. If the fair value of the 
impaired loan is less than the related recorded amount, a specific valuation allowance is established 
within the allowance for loan losses or a writedown is charged against the allowance for loan losses 
if the impairment is considered to be permanent. Measurement of impairment does not apply to 
large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment 
such as the Company’s portfolios of home equity loans, real estate mortgages, installment and other 
loans. 

The appropriateness of the allowance is also reviewed by management based upon its evaluation of 
then-existing economic and business conditions affecting the key lending areas of the Company and 
other conditions, such as new loan products, credit quality trends (including trends in nonperforming 
loans expected to result from existing conditions), collateral values, loan volumes and 
concentrations, specific industry conditions within portfolio segments that existed as of the balance 
sheet date and the impact that such conditions were believed to have had on the collectibility of the 
loan portfolio. There may be other factors that warrant the Company’s consideration in maintaining 
the allowance at a level sufficient to cover probable losses. Although management believes it has 
established and maintained the allowance for loan losses at adequate levels, future adjustments 
may be necessary if economic, real estate and other conditions differ substantially from the current 
operating environment . 

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically 
review the loan and foreclosed real estate portfolios and the related allowance for loan losses and 
valuation allowance for foreclosed real estate. These agencies, including the FDIC and the 
Massachusetts Division of Banks, may require adjustment to the allowance for loan losses based on 
their judgments of information available to them at the time of their examination, thereby adversely 
affecting results of operations. 

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses accurately reflects estimated credit losses 
for specifically identified loans, as well as probable credit losses inherent in the remainder of the 
portfolio as of the end of the periods presented. 
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Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets - Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as 
sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is 
deemed to be surrendered when ( I )  the assets have been isolated from the Corporation, (2) the 
transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to 
pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Corporation does not maintain effective 
control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. 

Premises and Equipment - Land is carried at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost, 
less accumulated depreciation, computed on either the straight-line or accelerated methods over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets, or lease term, if shorter, as follows: 

Buildings 
Leasehold Improvements 
Furniture and Equipment 

Years 
39 
20 
3-7 

The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to expense when incurred. Major expenditures for 
betterments are capitalized and depreciated. 

Other Real Estate Owned - Other real estate owned represents property acquired through 
foreclosure or deeded to the Company in lieu of foreclosure. Other real estate owned is recorded at 
the lower of the carrying value of the related loan, or the estimated fair value of the real estate 
acquired, net of estimated selling costs. Initial write-downs are charged to the allowance for loan 
losses at the time the loan is transferred to other real estate owned. Subsequent valuations are 
periodically performed by management and the carrying value is adjusted by a charge to expense to 
reflect any subsequent declines in the estimated fair value. Operating costs associated with other 
real estate owned are expensed as incurred. 

Retirement Plans and Employee Benefits - The Company provides a defined benefit pension plan 
for eligible employees through membership in the Savings Banks Employees Retirement Association 
(“SBERA). The Company’s policy is to fund pension cost as accrued. Employees are also eligible 
to participate in a 401(k) plan through SBERA. Beginning in 2000, the Company began making 
matching contributions to this plan at 50% of up to 6% of the employees’ eligible compensation. 

The Company currently offers postretirement life insurance benefits to retired employees. Such 
postretirement benefits represent a form of deferred compensation which requires that the cost and 
obligations of such benefits are recognized in the period in which services are rendered. 

Income Taxes - The Company uses the asset and liability method for income tax accounting, 
whereby, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences 
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and 
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
enacted tax rates applied to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in 
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. 

Earnings per Share - Basic earnings per share represents income available to common 
stockholders divided by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per share reflects additional common shares that would have been 
outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to 
income that would result from the assumed issuance. Potential common shares that may be issued 
by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock awards and options, are determined using the 
treasury stock method. 
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Earnings per common share for the years ended December 31, have been computed based on the 
following (in thousands, except per share data): 

2003 2002 

Net income available to common stockholders LLtW $ 4.044 

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 10,037 10,336 
Effect of dilutive stock awards 176 26 1 
Adjusted weighted average number of common shares outstanding 

10.21 3 10,597 used to calculate diluted earnings per common shares 

Basic earnings per share $ 0.36 $ 0.39 

Diluted earnings per share $ 0.36 $ 0.38 

The common stock of the Company commenced trading on December 28, 2001. As such, earnings 
per share data for the year ended 2001 and prior is not meaningful. 

Reclassificafions - Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to 
conform to the current year presentation. 

Stock Options - The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related Interpretations in 
accounting for stock options. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized. Had 
compensation cost for the Company's stock options been determined based on the fair value at the 
grants dates for awards under the plan consistent with the method prescribed by SFAS No. 123, the 
Company's net income (in thousands) and earnings per share would have been adjusted to the pro 
forma amounts indicated below: 

For the years ended December 31, 

Net income as reported 

Less: Compensation expense 
determined under fair value 
based method for all awards, 
net of tax effects 

Pro forma net income 

Net income per share 
Basic as reported 
Basic pro forma 
Diluted as reported 
Diluted pro forma 

2003 2002 

$ 3,651 $ 4,044 

$ 0.36 $ 0.39 
0.34 0.38 
0.36 0.38 
0.33 0.37 

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option 
pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: 

31 



Dividend yield 
Expected life in years 
Expected volatility 
Risk-free interest rate 

Year Ended 
December 31,2002 

1.25 % 

15 % 
3.58 % 

IO years 

No options were granted in 2003. 

Current Accounting Pronouncements - In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, 
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46”), which requires an enterprise to assess if 
consolidation is appropriate based upon its variable economic interests in variable interest entities 
(“VIES”). The initial determination of whether an entity is a VIE shall be made on the date at which 
an enterprise becomes involved with the entity. An entity is considered to be a VIE if it lacks a 
sufficient amount of voting equity interests (e.g. 10% of total assets) that are subject to the risk of 
loss or residual return of the entity. An enterprise shall consolidate a VIE if it has a variable interest 
that will absorb a majority of the VIE’S expected losses if they occur, receive a majority of the entity’s 
expected residual returns if they occur or both. 

A direct or indirect ability to make decisions that significantly affect the results of the activities of a 
VIE is a strong indication that an enterprise has one or both of the characteristics that would require 
consolidation of the VIE. In December 2003, FASB issued a revised interpretation, FIN 46R, that 
delays the effective date until after 2003. 

In April 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities 
(SFAS No. 149), which amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative 
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively 
referred to as derivatives) and for hedging activities under FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for 
derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. The provisions of SFAS No. 149 are generally 
effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and are to be applied 
prospectively. 

In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both 
Liabilities and Equity (SFAS No. 150), which establishes standards for how an issuer classified and 
measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. SFAS No. 
150 requires an issuer to classify certain instruments as liabilities (or assets in some circumstances) 
which may have previously been classified as equity. This statement is effective for financial 
instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise was effective at the 
beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Certain provisions of SFAS No. 
150 related to the application of paragraphs 9 and 10 have been deferred indefinitely. 

The adoption of the effective provisions of these standards did not have a material effect on the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements. The adoption of the remaining provisions of these 
standards is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements. 

In its November 2003 meeting, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus 
relating to disclosure requirements under EITF No. 03-01 “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary 
Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments” (EITF No. 03-01 ). The disclosure 
requirements have been incorporated herein (see Notes 3 and 4). 
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3. SECURITIES 

Securities at December 31, 2G03 are summarized as follows: 

December 31,2003 
Gross Gross Estimated 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
cost Gains Losses Value 

(In Thousands) 

Held to maturity: 
Federal agency obligations $ 43,250 $ 50 1 $ 12 
Municipal bonds 21,687 369 15 
Corporate debt securities 4,990 233 

Total held to maturity 69,927 1,103 27 

Available for sale: 
Corporate debt securities 3,745 49 

Federal agency obligations 6,487 73 3 
Equity securities 14,594 1,004 143 

Total available for sale 24,826 1,126 146 

Total Securities $ 94.753 $ 2.229 $ 173 

$ 43,739 
22,041 

5,223 

71,003 

3,794 
15,455 
6,557 

25,806 - 
Securities at December 31 2002 are summarized as follows: 

December 31,2002 
Gross Gross Estimated 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
cost Gains Losses Value 

(In Thousands) 

Held to maturity: 
Federal agency obligations 
Corporate debt securities 

Total held to maturity 

Available for sale: 
Corporate debt securities 
Equity securities 
Federal agency obligations 

Total available for sale 

Total Securities 

$ 38,391 
7,569 

45.960 

19,195 
28,432 
32,134 

79,761 

$ 125.721 

$ 389 
234 

623 

31 7 
176 
466 

959 

$ 
1 

1 

874 
4 

878 

A. - ~ 8z9 

$ 38,780 
7,802 

46,582 

1931 2 
27,734 
32,596 

79,842 
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Gross unrealized losses on securities as of December 31, 2003 were $173,000 related to securities 
with a fair market value of $16.3 million as of December 31, 2003. Of the $16.3 million of 
securities, $1 3.8 million have been in an unrealized loss position for less than twelve months and $2.5 
million of securities have been in an unrealized loss position for twelve months or more. The total 
unrealized loss on securities with a twelve month or more loss position aggregated $22,000. Although 
$2.5 million of securities have been in an unrealized loss position for at least twelve months, 
management has concluded that the impairments are temporary as a result of the nature of the 
investments. 

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2003, by maturity, are shown 
below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain issues have the right 
to call or repay obligations. 

December 31,2003 
Amortized Estimated 

cost Fair Value 
(In Thousands) 

Held to maturity: 
Due in one year or less $ 1,006 $ 1,029 
Due after one year through five years 32,242 32,604 
Due after five years through ten years 10,256 10,383 
Due after ten years 26,423 26,987 

Total held to maturity r S 6 9 . 9 2 7  $ 71.003 

Available for sale: 
Due in one year or less $ 1,996 $ 2,021 
Due after one year through five years 3,002 3,029 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 5,234 5,301 

Total available for sale $10.232 $ 10.351 

Gross gains of $771,000, $423,000, and $953,000 and gross losses $333,000, $897,000, and 
$477,000 were recorded on securities during the years ended December 31 2003,2002, and 2001, 
respectively. During 2003, 2002, and 2001, the Company recorded losses of $85,000, $2,105,000, 
and $31 5,000 respectively, for other than temporary impairments in value. 

Securities with a par value of $35 million and $1 5 million were pledged as collateral to the Federal 
Reserve Bank of Boston at December 31,2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Unrealized gains on securities available for sale, net of tax were $647,000 and $51,000 at December 
31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 
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4. MORTGAGE BACKED SECURITIES 

Mortgage backed securities at December 31, 2003 are summarized as follows: 

December 31,2003 
Gross Gross Estimated 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
cost Gains Losses Value 

(In Thousands) 

Held to maturity: 
Fannie Mae $ 131,808 $ 772 $ 895 $ 131,685 
Freddie Mac 50,751 239 301 50,689 
Ginnie Mae 8,583 66 60 8,589 
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 54 1 7 548 

Total held to maturity 191,683 1,084 1,256 191 5 1  1 

Available for sale: 
Fannie Mae 3 1,627 348 103 31,872 
Freddie Mac 18,611 74 99 18,586 
Ginnie Mae 20,854 91 88 20,857 
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 4,872 26 36 4,862 

Total available for sale 75,964 539 326 76,177 

Total Mortgage Backed Securities $267.647 --$- 1.623 $ 1.582 $ 267.688 

Mortgage backed securities at December 31, 2002 are summarized as follows: 

December 31.2002 

Held to maturity: 
Fannie Mae 
Freddie Mac 
Ginnie Mae 
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 

Total held to maturity 

Available for sale: 
Fannie Mae 
Freddie Mac 
Ginnie Mae 
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 

Total available for sale 

Total Mortgage Backed Securities 

Gross Gross Estimated 
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 

cost Gains Losses Value 
(In Thousands) 

$ 77,049 
58,988 
13,920 
9,382 

159,339 

22,182 
29,930 
25,762 
10,771 

88,645 

$4 

$ 1,038 
860 
226 
110 

2,234 

697 
55 1 
438 
142 

1,828 

$ 22 
27 
23 
4 

76 

5 

5 

$ 78,065 
59,821 
14,123 
9,488 

161,497 

22,879 
30,481 
26,200 
10,908 

90.468 

$ 251.965 
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Collateralized Mortgage Obligations include haunches of AAA investment grade and consist of high quality 
mortgage obligations. 

Gross gains of $56,000, $850,000 and $833,000 and gross losses of $0, $21,000, and $163,000 were recorded 
on mortgage backed securities during the years ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Unrealized gains on mortgage backed securities available for sale, net of tax were $141,000 and $1,167,000 at 
December 31,2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Gross unrealized losses on mortgage backed securities for the year ended December 31,2003 were $1.6 million 
related to securities with a fair market value of $142.4 million as of December 31, 2003. The total fair market 
value of $142.4 million was in an unrealized loss position for less than twelve months. 

5. LOANS 

Loans consisted of the following amounts as of: 

December 31, 
2003 2002 

(In Thousands) 

Residential real estate 
Commercial and industrial 
Commercial real estate 
Consumer 

Total Loans 

Unearned premiums and deferred loan fees 

Allowance for loan losses 
and costs, net 

$ 110,547 $ 157,896 
85,292 61,494 

131,292 100,903 
22,310 41,064 

349,441 361,357 

181 123 
(4,642) (4,325) 

5G3lUEB $ 357.155 

The following table summarizes information regarding impaired loans: 
Years Ended 
December 31, 

2003 2002 
(In Thousands) 

Recorded investment in impaired loans, period end 
Allowance for impaired loans 

$ 1,830 $ 1,974 
70 70 

Years Ended 
December 31, 

2003 2002 2001 
(In Thousands) 

Average recorded investment in impaired loans $ 1,970 $2,008 $ 1,612 
Income recorded during the period for impaired loans 126 130 163 
Income recorded on cash basis during the period for impaired loans 127 143 155 

There were no restructured loans at December 31,2003,2002 and 2001 
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Nonaccrual loans at December 31,2003, December 31,2002 and 2001 and related interest income are 
summarized as follows: 

Years Ended 
December 31, 

2003 2002 2001 
(In Thousands) 

Amount 
Interest income that would have been 

recorded under the original contract terms 

$ 1,768 $2,383 $2,684 

327 324 263 

Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The 
unpaid balances of these loans totaled $31.8 million and $70.3 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, 
respectively. Net service fee income (expense) of ($46,000), $76,000, and $120,000 was recorded for the 
years ended December 31,2003,2002, and 2001, respectively. 

The Company’s servicing assets are recorded at fair value at the time the asset is acquired. The fair value 
is based upon the net present value of future cash flows of the net servicing revenue. Assumptions used in 
determining fair value include service fee revenue, float revenue, escrow revenue, servicing expense, and 
estimated life of the underlying loans. The fair value of the asset is recalculated quarterly to determine 
possible impairment. In 2003 the Company recorded an impairment charge of $30,000, to reduce the 
carrying value of the servicing assets as of December 31, 2003 to $76,000. The servicing asset is 
amortized in proportion to the estimated net servicing revenue of the loans. 

6. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 

An analysis of changes in the allowance for loan losses is as follows: 
Years Ended 
December 31, 

2003 2002 2001 
(In Thousands) 

Balance, beginning of year 
Provision 
C harge-offs 
Recoveries 

Balance, end of year 

7. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 

Premises and equipment are summarized as follows: 

Land 
Buildings 
Leasehold improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Total 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

$4,325 $3,923 $ 3,434 
750 934 1,630 

(928) (1 ,843) (725) 
292 - 396 - 702 

$4.642 $4.325 $3.923 

As of 
December 31, 

2003 2002 
(In Thousands) 

$ 2,201 $ 2,288 
9,866 10,242 

735 735 
5,666 5,296 

18,468 18,561 

(6,694) (5,710) 

Premises and equipment, net $11.774 
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8. DEPOSITS 

Deposit accounts by type and weighted average rates at December 31 are summarized as follows: 

2003 - Rate - 2002 Rate 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Demand and NOW: 
NOW accounts $ 42,465 0.54% $ 41,907 1.07% 
Demand accounts 54,620 54,736 

Savings: 
Regular accounts 46,331 0.50 44,876 I .05 
Money market accounts 154,825 0.98 139,543 1.49 

Time certificates of deposit 334,190 2.58 375,003 3.51 

Total Deposits $LEx&Ia $I 656,065 

Time deposits of $100,000 or more totaled approximately $69.8 million and $80.6 million at December 31, 
2003 and 2002, respectively. Interest expense on such deposits totaled $2.3 million, $3.1 million and $4.0 
million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively. 

Cash paid for interest was: 

Years Ended 
December 31, 

(In Thousands) 
2003 2002 2001 

Deposits 
Customer Repurchase Agreements 
Federal Home Loan Advances 
Total 

$ 13,130 $ 18,571 $24,698 
21 1 21 3 246 
525 26 

. $ .~ 13,865 fLE3Z34 $24.974 

At December 31, 2003, the scheduled maturities of time certificates of deposits are as follows: 

Amount Rate 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Within 1 year 
Over 1 year to 3 years 
Over 3 years to 5 years 

$234,694 2.35% 
90,934 3.13 
8,562 3.24 

Total certificates of deposits i%s!cW 2.5a% 
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9. CUSTOMER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 

The following table summarizes information regarding repurchase agreements: 

Years Ended 
December 31, 

2003 2002 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Balance outstanding, end of year $12,135 $ 8,724 
Maximum amount outstanding at any month end during period 14,247 9,928 
Average amount outstanding during period 13,192 8,291 
Weighted average interest rate 1.21% 2.25% 
Book value of collateral pledged end of period 35,204 14,994 
Fair value of collateral pledged end of period 35,570 15,209 

I O .  FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES 

The following advances are secured by a blanket lien on the Company’s residential real estate loans: 

Maturity 
December 31,2003 

Amount Rate 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

January 3,2006 $ 5,000 2.56% 
January 2,2007 5,000 2.98% 
December 31,2007 5,000 3.33% 
August 13,2008 3.85% 

11. LINE OF CREDIT 

The Company has a line of credit with the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston collateralized by investments. 
Additionally, the Company has an ”Ideal Way” line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank for 
$4,541,000 and $9,541,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. No amounts 
were outstanding under these lines at December 31,2003 and 2002. 

12. STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLAN AND EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN 

Stock Options 

Under the Company’s stock based Incentive Plan, the Company may grant options to its directors, officers 
and employees for up to 497,260 shares of common stock. Both incentive stock options and non-statutory 
stock options may be granted under the plan. The exercise price of each option equals the market price of 
the Company’s stock on the date of grant and an option’s maximum term is ten years. Options vest at 20% 
per year. 
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A summary of the status of the Company’s stock options for the years ended December 31,2002 and 2003 
is presented below: 

Weighted Average 
Shares Exercise Price 

Fixed Options: 
Balance at December 31,2001 
Granted 

$ 
448,000 14.39 

Balance at December 31,2002 448,000 14.39 
Exercised (2,000) 14.39 
Forfeited (1,500) 14.39 
Balance at December 31,2003 444.500 $ 14.39 

The weighted average fair value of the options granted in 2002 using the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model were $3.75 per share. No options were granted in 2003. 

Assumptions used to determine the weighted average fair value of options granted in 2002: 

Dividend yield 1.25% 
Expected life in years 
Expected volatility 15% 

10 years 

Risk-free interest rate 3.58% 

Information pertaining to options outstanding at December 31, 2003 is as follows: 

Weighted Average 

Price Outstandinq Contractual Life 
Exercise Number Remaining 

$14.39 444.500 -3.6 yeaE 

Number 
Exercisable 

8L3QQ 

Stock A wards 

Under the Company’s Recognition and Retention Plan dated November 1, 2002, the Company may grant 
stock awards to its directors, officers and employees to purchase up to 198,904 shares of common stock. 
The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for stock awards. The 
stock allocations, based on the market price at the date of grant, is recorded as unearned compensation. 
Unearned compensation is amortized over the vesting period to be benefited. The Company recorded 
compensation cost related to the stock awards of approximately $544,000 in 2003 and $109,000 in 2002. 
No compensation expense was recorded in 2001 as the plan was approved in 2002. 

Stock awards for 189,800 shares were granted during 2002. No stock awards were granted in 2003. 

Employee Stock Ownership Plan 

In January 2002, the Company established an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the ESOP) for the benefit 
of each employee that has reached the age of 21 and has completed at least 1,000 hours of service in the 
previous twelve-month period. Compensation expense is recognized as ESOP shares are committed to be 
released. Expense recognized related to the ESOP totaled $225,000, $193,000 and $0 for the years 
ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. As of December 31,2003 and 2002 the number 
of allocated shares held by the ESOP were 12,672 and 0, respectively. The number of committed-to-be- 
released shares held by the ESOP as of December 31,2003 and 2002 were 13,260 and 12,672, 
respectively. ESOP shares are considered outstanding for earnings per share calculations based on the 
value of shares issued. Other ESOP shares are excluded from earnings per share calculations. Dividends 
declared on allocated ESOP shares are charged to retained earnings. The value of unearned shares to be 
allocated to ESOP participants for future services not yet performed is reflected as a reduction of 
stockholders’ equity. 
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13. RETIREMENT PLANS AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Pension Plan - The Company provides basic and supplemental pension benefits for eligible employees 
through the Savings Banks Employees Retirement Association Pension Plan (the "Plan"). Employees must 
work a minimum of 1,000 hours per year to be eligible for the Plan. Eligible employees become vested in 
the Plan after five years of service. 

The following table provides information for the Plan at December 31 : 

2001 - 2003 2002 - 
(In Thousands) 

Change in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation, beginning of year 
Service cost 
Interest 
Actuarial loss (gain) 
Benefits paid 
Benefit obligation, end of year 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 
Actual return (loss) on plan assets 
Employer contribution 
Benefits paid 
Fair value of plan assets, end of year 

Funded status (benefit obligation less 

Unrecognized net actuarial (loss) gain 
Transition liability 
Accrued benefit cost 

fair value of plan assets) 

$6,515 
504 
439 
80 

(128) 
$ 7.410 

$4,498 
708 
580 

(128) 
Eifs 

$ 1,752 

127 
(1 65) 

K j a  

$ 6,262 
51 3 
438 

(223) 
(475) 

$535 

$4,678 
(460) 

(475) 
$4- 

755 

$2,017 
(453) 
139 

$1.703 

$4,920 
378 
38 1 
880 
(297) 

2 d 2 6 2  

$ 5,520 

18 
(297) 

$4.678 

(563) 

s 1,584 
165 
150 

Net pension cost includes the following components for the years ended December 31 : 

2003 - 2002 2001 
(In Thousands) 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on assets 
Actuarial (gain) loss 
Transition obligation 

$ 513 $ 378 
439 438 38 1 

$ 504 

(360) (374) (444) 
19 (7) (86) 
0 (12) (12) 

Net periodic pension cost LE&l!J $...W Lm 
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The following actuarial assumptions were used for the years ended December 31 : 

Weighted-average assumption: 
Discount rate 
Expected return on plan assets 
Rate of compensation increase 

6.75% 7.00% 7.75% 
8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 
5.00% 5.50% 5.50% 

The expected long term rate of return on plan assets is based on prevailing yields of high quality fixed 
income investments increased by a premium of 3 to 5% for equity investments. The Bank expects to 
contribute $513,000 to its pension plan in 2004. 

The Company's pension plan asset allocation at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and target allocation for 
2004 are as follows: 

Percentage of Plan 
Target Assets 

Allocation at December 31, 
2002 - 2003 Asset Cateaory 2004 - 

Fixed Income Securities 25 - 45% 44.9% 38.1 % 
Equity Securities 55 - 75% 55.1 61.9 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 

Trustees of Savings Bank Employees Retirement Association select investment managers for the portfolio 
and a special investment advisory firm is retained to provide allocation analysis. The overall investment 
objective is to diversify equity investments across a spectrum of types, small cap, large cap and 
international, along with investment styles such as growth and value. 

The Company estimates that the benefits to be paid from the pension plan for years ended December 31, 

Benefit Payments to 
Year Participants 

2004 $ 360,000 
2005 109,000 
2006 1,368,000 
2007 66,000 
2008 20,000 

In Aggregate for 2009 - 201 3 3,075,000 
$4.998.Mn 

Postretirement Benefits - The Company provides postretirement life insurance benefits to employees 
based on the employee's salary at time of retirement. The accrual of postretirement benefits other than 
pension expense is made during the years an employee provides service. The following sets forth the 
funded status: 

December 31, 

(In Thousands) 
- 2003 - 2002 

Benefits obligation and funded status 
Transitional obligation 
Accrued benefit costs 

'1 66' 149 w $8.11 
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Actuarial assumptions used in accounting for the postretirement benefit plan were: 

December 31, 

(Dollars in Thousands) 
2003 2002 

Assumed average salary compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 
Discount rate 6.75% 6.75% 

Benefit cost 
Benefit paid 

Net periodic benefit cost for: 

$ 60 $ 48 
69 54 

Years Ended December 31, 
2003 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 1  

Assumed average salary compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 6.00% 
Discount Rate 6.75 6.75 7.00 
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 8.00 8.00 8.00 

Supplemental Retirement Benefits - The Company provides supplemental retirement benefits to certain 
key officers. At December 31,2003 and 2002, the Company had accrued $1.8 million and $1.7 million, 
respectively, relating to these benefits. Amounts charged to expense were $1 80,000, $23,000 and 
$180,000 for the years ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. 

401(k) - Employees are eligible to participate in a 401(k) plan through SBERA. The Company makes a 
matching contribution of 50% with respect to the first 6% of each participant’s annual earnings contributed 
to the plan. The Company’s contribution to the plan were $150,000, $1 13,000 and $50,000, for the years 
ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. 

14. REGULATORY CAPITAL 

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the 
federal and state banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain 
mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a 
direct material effect on the Company’s and the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy 
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must 
meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off- 
balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and 
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, 
and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the 
Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital (as 
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average 
assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31,2003 and 2002, that the Company and the 
Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject. 

As of December 31, 2003, the most recent notification from The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
categorized the Bank as ”well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To 
be categorized as “well capitalized” the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk based and 
Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the following. There are no conditions or events since that notification 
that management believes have changed the Bank’s category. The Company’s and the Bank’s actual 
capital ratios as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 are also presented in the table. 
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Minimum 
To Be Well 

Minimum Capitalized 
For Capital Under Prompt 
Adequacy Corrective 

Actual Purposes Action Provisions 
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

(Dollars in Thousands) 
December 31,2003 

Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets): 
Consolidated 
Bank 

Consolidated 
Bank 

Consolidated 
Bank 

Tier I Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets): 

Tier I Capital (to Average Assets): 

$ 129,120 29.63% $ 34,864 8.00% NIA 
82,733 19.57 33,820 8.00 $ 42,275 10.00% 

124,008 28.46 17,432 4.00 NIA 
77,621 18.36 16,910 4.00 25,365 6.00 

124,008 15.31 32,407 4.00 NIA 
77,621 10.18 30,510 4.00 38,137 5.00 

Minimum 
To Be Well 

Minimum Capitalized 
For Capital Under Prompt 
Adequacy Corrective 

Action Provisions 
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Actual Purposes 
- 

December 31,2002 

Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets): 
Consolidated 
Bank 

Consolidated 
Bank 

Consolidated 
Bank 

Tier I Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets): 

Tier I Capital (to Average Assets): 

$ 129,371 29.78% $ 34,751 8.00% NIA 
78,479 19.44 32,303 8.00 $ 40,379 10.00% 

124,968 28.77 17,375 4.00 NIA 
74,076 18.35 16,151 4.00 24,227 6.00 

124,968 15.65 31,942 4.00 NIA 
74,076 9.93 29,839 4.00 32,299 5.00 
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Current tax provision (benefit): 
Federal 
State 

Total 

Deferred tax (benefit) provision: 
Federal 
State 

Total 

Total 

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective rates are 
summarized below: 

Years Ended December 31 I 

2 0 0 3 -  2002 2001 
(In Thousands) 

Statutory federal income tax rate 
Increase (decrease) resulting from: 

State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 
Dividends received deduction 
Other, net 

34.0% 34.0% 34.0% 

17.4% 3.6% 0.0% 
(0.5%) (0.5%) 0.4% 
17.3%) 11.5%) 11 .O%) 

43.6% 35.6% 33.4% Effective tax rate 

Cash paid for income taxes for the years ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001 was $7.2 
million, $4.6 million and $200,000, respectively. 
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Years Ended December 31 

(In Thousands) 
2003 - 2002 - 2001 - 

$2,106 $4,740 ($352) 
1,706 342 7 
3,812 5,082 (345) 

(992) (2,843) 2,857 

(992) (2,843) 2,857 
- - -  



The tax effects of each type of income and expense item that give rise to deferred taxes are as of: 

December 31, 
2002 

(In Thousands) 
- 2003 - 

Net unrealized gain on securities 

Depreciation 
Allowance for loan losses 
Deferred income 
Employee benefit plans 
Other 

available for sale 

Net deferred tax asset $ 2.553 $ 1.285 

A summary of the change in the net deferred tax asset (liability) is as follows: 

Years Ended December 31 

(In Thousands) 
2003 - 2002 

Balance at beginning of year 
Deferred tax benefit 
Net unrealized gain 

on securities available for sale 

$ 1,285 $ (1,835) 
992 2,843 

276 277 

$ 1.285 Balance at end of year L22ii23 

Massachusetts legislation was signed on March 5, 2003 amending the corporate tax law affecting the 
treatment of dividends received from Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs). Dividends from the RElT 
subsidiary are no longer eligible for a dividends-received deduction. As a result of the enactment of this 
legislation, the Company has ceased recording the tax benefits associated with the dividend received 
deduction effective for the 2003 tax year. 

In addition to the effect on 2003, the legislation is retroactive to 1999. The Company’s 2003 results included 
a charge of $1.45 million representing the additional state tax liability, including interest, relating to the 
deduction for dividends received from the RElT for 2002 and prior years. 

The federal income tax reserve for loan losses at the Bank’s base year is $5.8 million. If any portion of the 
reserve is used for purposes other than to absorb loan losses, approximately 150% of the amount actually 
used, limited to the amount of the reserve, would be subject to taxation in the fiscal year in which used. As 
the Bank intends to use the reserve solely to absorb loan losses, a deferred tax liability of approximately 
$2.4 million has not been provided. 
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16. TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS AND TRUSTEES 

The Company has had, and expects to have in the future, loans with its directors, trustees, and executive 
officers. Such loans, in the opinion of management do not include more than the normal risk of collectibility 
or other unfavorable features. Following is a summary of activity for such loans: 

Years Ended 
December 31 

2003 2002 2001 
(In Thousands) 

Balance, beginning of year 
New loans granted 
Repayments of principal 

Balance, end of year 

$ 2,453 $ 1,570 $ 3,647 
4,911 1,487 283 

1604) 12,360) (1 89) 

$ 1.570 

17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

In the normal course of business, various commitments and contingent liabilities are outstanding, such as 
standby letters of credit and commitments to extend credit with off-balance-sheet risk that are not reflected 
in the consolidated financial statements. Financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk involve elements 
of credit, interest rate, liquidity and market risk. 

Management does not anticipate any significant losses as a result of these transactions. The following 
summarizes these financial instruments and other commitments and contingent liabilities at their contract 
amounts: 

December 31, 

(In Thousands) 
2002 - 2003 - 

Commitment to extend credit: 
Unused lines of credit $ 56,112 $ 57,954 
Other unused commitments 24,371 4,483 
Mortgage commitments 134 687 
Existing loan agreements 3,490 992 
Standby letters of credit 6,801 1,300 

The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does 
for on balance sheet instruments. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since some commitments expire without being 
drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The 
Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral 
obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit 
evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, 
property, plant and equipment, and income-producing commercial properties. 
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Standby letters of credit are written conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and 
private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same 
as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is party to various legal proceedings, none of which, in 
the opinion of management, will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or 
results of operations. 

The Company leases facilities and certain equipment under cancelable and noncancelable leases expiring 
in various years through the year 2008. Certain of the leases provide for renewal periods for up to fifteen 
years at the discretion of the Company. Rent expense under operating leases was $1 72,000, $1 79,000, 
and $171,000, for the years ended December 31,2003,2002, and 2001, respectively. 

Aggregate future minimum rental payments under the terms of the operating leases at December 31, 2003, 
are as follows: 

(In Thousands) 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

$ 187 
189 
185 
104 

r 4  

18. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK 

Most of the Company’s loans consist of residential and commercial real estate loans located in Western 
Massachusetts. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company’s residential and commercial related 
real estate loans represented 69% and 72% of total loans, respectively. The Company’s policy for 
collateral requires that the amount of the loan may not exceed 95% and 80% of the appraised value of the 
property for residential and commercial real estate, respectively; at the date the loan is granted. For 
residential loans, in cases where the loan exceeds the percentage, private mortgage insurance is typically 
obtained for that portion of the loan in excess of 80% of the appraised value of the property. 

19. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Methods and assumptions for valuing the Company’s financial instruments are set forth below for financial 
instruments that have fair values different than their carrying values. Estimated fair values are calculated 
based on the value without regard to any premium or discount that may result from concentrations of 
ownership of a financial instrument, possible tax ramifications or estimated transaction costs. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Accrued lnterest Receivable and Accrued lnterest Payable - The 
carrying amounts of these items are considered to be a reasonable estimate of fair value due to their short- 
term nature. 

Securities and Mortgage Backed Securities - The estimated fair values for securities and mortgage 
backed securities, except certain state and municipal securities, are based on quoted market prices or 
dealer quotations. The estimated fair value of certain state and municipal securities, not readily available 
through market sources other than dealer quotations, are based on quoted market prices of similar 
instruments, adjusted for differences between the quoted instruments and the instruments being valued. 

Federal Home Loan Bank and Other Stock - These investments are carried at cost which approximates 
fair value. 
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Loans - Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics. Loans are 
segregated by type, net of the applicable portion of the allowance for loan losses, such as commercial and 
industrial, commercial real estate, residential mortgage, and consumer. Each loan category is further 
segmented into fixed and adjustable rate interest terms and by performing and nonpetforming categories. 

The fair value of performing loans, except residential mortgage loans, is calculated by discounting 
scheduled cash flows through the estimated maturity using estimated market discount rates that reflect the 
credit and interest rate risk inherent in the loan. The estimate of maturity is based on the Company’s 
historical experience with repayments for each loan classification, modified, as required, by an estimate of 
the effect of current economic and lending conditions. For performing residential mortgage loans, fair value 
is estimated by discounting contractual cash flows adjusted for prepayment estimates using discount rates 
based on secondary market sources adjusted to reflect differences in servicing and credit costs. 

Estimated fair value for impaired loans is based on recent external appraisals if the loan is collateral 
dependent. Assumptions regarding credit risk cash flows and discount rates are judgmentally determined 
using available market information and specific borrower information. 

Management has made estimates of fair value discount rates that it believes to be reasonable. 

Deposits - The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as noninterest-bearing 
demands deposits, savings and NOW accounts, and money market and checking accounts, is equal to the 
amount payable on demand. The estimated fair value of certificates of deposit is based on the discounted 
value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently offered for 
deposits of similar remaining maturities. 

Customer Repurchase Agreements - The fair value of these agreements is estimated based on the 
discounted value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently 
offered. 

Borrowings - The estimated fair value of borrowings is based upon the discounted value of contractual 
cash flows. The discount rate is estimated using Federal Home Loan Bank advance rates currently offered 
for borrowings with similar maturities. 

Commitments to Extend Credit - The stated value of commitments to extend credit approximates fair 
value as the current interest rates for similar commitments do not differ significantly. For fixed-rate loan 
commitments, fair value also considers the difference between current levels of interest rates and the 
committed rates. Such differences are not considered significant. 
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The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31 are as follows: 

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Securities: 

Available for sale 
Held to maturity 

Mortgage backed securities: 
Available for sale 
Held to maturity 

other stock 
Federal Home Loan Bank and 

Loans - net 

Accrued interest and dividends 

LIABILITIES: 
Deposits 

Customer repurchase agreements 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 

Accrued interest payable 

2003 2002 
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated 
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value 

(In Thousands) 

$ 45,674 

25,806 
69,927 

76,177 
191,683 

4,237 

344,980 

3,555 

632,431 

12,135 

20,000 

9 

$ 45,674 

25,806 
71,003 

76,177 
191,511 

4,237 

353,496 

3,555 

633,390 

12,135 

20,392 

9 

$ 56,575 

79,842 
45,960 

90,468 
159,339 

3,933 

357,155 

3,937 

656,065 

8,724 

15,000 

18 

$ 56,575 

79,842 
46,582 

90,468 
161,497 

3,933 

370,963 

3,937 

659,586 

8,724 

15,000 

18 

Limitations - Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market 
information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates do not reflect any 
premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time the Company’s entire 
holdings of a particular financial instrument. Where quoted market prices are not available, fair 
value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current 
economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors. These 
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment. 
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. 

20. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The Company has one reportable segment, “Community Banking.” All of the Company’s activities 
are interrelated, and each activity is dependent and assessed based on how each of the activities of 
the Company supports the others. For example, commercial lending is dependent upon the ability of 
the Bank to fund itself with retail deposits and other borrowings and to manage interest rate and 
credit risk. This situation is also similar for consumer and residential mortgage lending. Accordingly, 
all significant operating decisions are based upon analysis of the Company as one operating 
segment or unit. 

The Company operates only in the U.S. domestic market, primarily in Western Massachusetts. For 
the years ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001, there is no customer that accounted for more 
than 10% of the Company’s revenue. 
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21. CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The balance sheets of the Company are as follows: 
December 31, 

(In Thousands) 
- 2003 2002 

ASSETS: 
Due from banks 
Securities available for sale at estimated fair value 
Investment in subsidiaries 
Other assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: 
Liabilities 
Equity 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

$ 7,204 $ 660 
15,232 

11 7,345 I 1  1,027 
500 

$5.04~ $126.919 

$ 245 $ 220 
124,804 126,699 

$ 125,Oa $ 126.699 

The statements of income for the Company are as follows: 

December 31, 

(In Thousands) 
- 2003 2002 

INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME: 
Securities 
Interest-bearing deposits 

Total Interest and Dividend Income 

NONINTEREST EXPENSE: 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other 
Total noninterest expense 

LOSS BEFORE EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED INCOME 
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND BENEFIT FOR INCOME TAX 

EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED INCOME 
OF SUBSIDIARIES 

INCOME TAX BENEFIT 

$ 34 $ 232 
35 88 
69 320 

786 309 
294 251 

1,080 560 

4,248 4,200 

(414) 0 
NET INCOME GL65l $4.044 
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The statement of cash flows of the Company are as follows: 

December 31 

(In Thousands) 
2002 - 2003 - 

0 P E RAT1 N G ACT IV IT1 ES : 

Net Income $ 
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary 
Increase in other liabilities 
Increase in other assets 
Net transfers from subsidiaries 

3,651 $ 4,044 
(4,248) (4,200) 

25 220 

23,695 
(500) 

Other, net 637 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (435) 23,759 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Purchase of securities 
Sale of securities 
Other, net 

(34) (1 5,000) 
15,266 
(2,500) 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 12,732 (I 5,000) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Cash dividends paid 
Other, net 

Net cash used in financing activities 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

22. OTHER NONINTEREST EXPENSE 

(2,113) (I ,588) 
(3,640) (631 1) 

(5,753) (8,099) 

6,544 660 

660 

L7.204 $ 660 

Indirect auto lending processing charges, as a component of other noninterest expense, exceeds 1 % 
of the aggregate of total interest income and noninterest income in 2001. It is not shown separately 
on the consolidated statements of income. Indirect auto lending processing charges of 
approximately $71 9,000 were recorded for the year ended December 31, 2001. There is no item 
that as a component of noninterest expense, exceeds I % of the aggregate of total interest income 
and noninterest income for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 
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23. SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter 

Interest and dividend income $ 9,673 $ 8,991 $ 8,393 $ 8,578 
Interest expense 3,957 3,575 3.320 3.006 

Net interest and dividend income 5,716 5 4 1  6 5,073 5,572 

Provision for loan losses 200 150 150 250 
Noninterest income 624 639 710 642 
Gains on sales and writedowns 

of securities, net 60 53 70 276 
Noninterest expense 4,629 4,478 4.31 5 4,208 

Income before income taxes 1,571 1,480 I ,388 2,032 

Income taxes( 1 ) 3,177 (1,253) 337 559 

Net income $ (1,606) $ --27.33 u u 

2002 
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter 

Interest and dividend income $ 11,107 $ 10,965 $ 10,745 $ 10,196 
Interest expense 5,012 4,811 4.637 4,315 

Net interest and dividend income 6,095 6,154 6,108 5,881 

Provision for loan losses 300 200 234 200 
Noninterest income 379 384 41 7 208 
Gains (losses) on sales and 

3,893 Noninterest expense 4.276 4.270 4,220 

Income before income taxes 1,650 1,559 1,932 1,142 

(854) writedowns of securities (248) (509) (1 39) 

Income taxes 563 53 1 661 484 

Net income $ - - r n 7  $ . -1,928 M U  

2001 
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter 

Interest and dividend income $ 12,260 $ 12,016 $ 11,697 $ 11,569 
Interest expense 6,842 6,582 5.989 5,588 

Net interest and dividend income 5,418 5.434 5,708 5,981 

Provision for loan losses 328 272 530 500 
Noninterest income 356 314 354 662 
Gains (losses) on sales and 

writedowns of securities 29 141 452 208 

Noninterest expense 3.563 3,935 3,762 4,639 
Income before income taxes 1,912 1,682 2,222 1,712 

Income taxes 650 572 758 531 

Net income $ 1,262 $ -Am u u 

(1) During the first quarter of 2003, the Company accrued an amount of $2.9 million, net of federal benefit related to the REIT. As a 
result of the settlement with the DOR, the Company's second quarter financial results include a credit of approximately 51.45 
million, representing a reversal of 40% of the charge taken in the first quarter. See Note 15, Income Taxes, in the notes to the 
consolidated financial statements. 
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

Our common stock is listed on The American Stock Exchange under the symbol “WFD.” 
Westfield Mutual Holding Company owns 5,607,400 shares, or 53% of our outstanding common stock. At 
December 31, 2003, there were 10,522,300 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, and there 
were approximately 1,437 holders of record. 

The table below shows the high and low sales price during the periods indicated as well as dividends 
declared per share. The information set forth in the table below was provided by the American Stock 
Exchange. 

Price Range Dividends 
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31,2003 Hlah Low 
Fourth Quarter ended December 31,2003 $ 24.80 $ 22.70 $ 0.05 
Third Quarter ended September 30, 2003 22.32 18.60 0.05 
Second Quarter ended June 30,2003 18.90 15.47 0.05 
First Quarter ended March 31,2003 15.90 15.15 0.05 

Price Ranae Dividends - 
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31,2002 Hlah Low 
Fourth Quarter ended December 31,2002 $ 15.90 $ 14.34 $ 
Third Quarter ended September 30,2002 
Second Quarter ended June 30,2002 
First Quarter ended March 31, 2002 

15.98 12.99 0.05 
16.23 14.46 0.05 
14.89 13.00 0.05 

A quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per share was declared by the Board of Directors on January 
28, April 22, July 22, and October 28, 2003. The continued payment of dividends also depends upon our 
debt and equity structure, earnings, financial condition, need for capital in connection with possible future 
acquisitions and other factors, including economic conditions, regulatory restrictions and tax 
considerations. We cannot guarantee that we will pay dividends or if paid, that we will not reduce or 
eliminate dividends in the future. 

The only funds available for the payment of dividends on the capital stock of Westfield Financial 
will be cash and cash equivalents held by Westfield Financial, dividends paid by Westfield Bank to 
Westfield Financial, and borrowings. Westfield Bank will be prohibited from paying cash dividends to 
Westfield Financial to the extent that any such payment would reduce Westfield Bank’s capital below 
required capital levels or would impair the liquidation account to be established for the benefit of the 
Westfield Bank’s eligible account holders and supplemental eligible account holders at the time of the 
reorganization and stock offering. 
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CORPORATE INFO RMATlON 
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Dcloitte & ToLiche I I P 
Hmford, Coririp.c tic ut 
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Wash i r i  gto r i  , D( 1 2 O( 106 
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Cranford, N] 0701 6-3572 
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Wesl-field Financial, Inc. shareholders and thc piblic: are enc-niriiged I.(-) contact CIS with any qwstioris u r  
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